
  
  

  

WWaasshhiinnggttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  
BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  MMeeeettiinngg  

FFeebbrruuaarryy  33,,  22002255  
  
  
  
  

  



January 30, 2025  4:50:27 PM 

WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2025 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM, 116 ADAMS STREET 
PLYMOUTH, NC  27962 

 
  
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Phelps 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
    
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Regular Session Minutes:  January 6, 2025 & Special Called Meeting Minutes  
January 15-16, 2025 (Budget Workshops) 

b) FY26 Budget Preparation Guidelines 
 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3–5-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:15 PM  Request for Funding for Temporary Clerk of Court Position, Mr. Keith Phelps, Clerk  

a) AOC Contract 
 
Item 4 6:25 PM  Departmental Information Update— Mr. Chris Respass, Soil & Water Coordinator 
 
Item 5 6:45 PM  S.T.R.A.P. Bids, Mr. Chris Respass, Soil & Water Coordinator 
 
Item 6 6:55 PM Tax Collector’s Report, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 7 7:05 PM Economic Development/Strategic Plan (Part 2) Update, Mr. Kelly Chesson, 

Economic Dev. Director   
 
Item 8 7:15 PM PK12 Funding Agreement (First Amendment) and Lease, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA  
 
Item 9 7:25 PM Boards & Committees:  Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 

a) Economic Development Advisory Council 
   
Item 10 7:35 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers: Ms. Missy 

Dixon, Finance Officer 
 
Item 11 7:45 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer, or Clerk 

Item 12 7:55 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

 
Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Regular Session Minutes:  January 6, 2025 and Recessed Meeting Minutes January 
15, 2025 and January 16, 2025. 

    See attached at the very end of this package. 
 

b)  FY26 Budget Preparation Guidelines 
See attached. 



FY25 Budget Preparation Guidelines for the Budget Officer  Page 1 of 2 
 

FY26 Budget Preparation Guidelines 
For the Budget Officer  

From the Washington County Board of Commissioners: 
 

1. Formatting Guidelines: Present a balanced recommended budget to the Board of Commissioners using the 
same general format used to present recent budgets over the last few years including a consolidated budget 
book divided into sections, with budget requests and supporting info behind an itemization of each fund 
and/or department generally divided into three columns reflecting the originally requested allocation 
amount, Budget Officer’s recommendation, and final Board allocation.   

Continue utilizing a biennially updated capital improvement plan (CIP) to more proactively 
evaluate and budget for future major capital improvement/maintenance/reserve expenses.  Note overlaps 
between CIP projects and Strategic Plan Goals/Action Items. 
 

2. General Guidelines: In balancing the overall budget, maintain compliance with applicable federal, state, 
and local laws including the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and Washington County 
Fund Balance Policy.  Generally attempt to achieve the following: 

 
a. Fully fund required annual allocations and/or full pro-rated portions of multi-year allocations, 

rather than deferring those allocations to future fiscal years. 
 

b. Develop and maximize available revenue sources and minimize unnecessary expenditures while 
meeting reasonably required expenses anticipated for the upcoming budget year and recommend 
allocating reasonably sufficient funding to provide for anticipated future capital improvements 
and/or capital reserve expenses.  
 

c. Maintain the integrity of each separately designated fund including without limitation the 
proprietary/enterprise funds, and minimize unjustified and unnecessary inter-fund transfers 
between separately designated fund budgets. 

 
d. Limit the establishment of new services, or expansion of existing services, unless new revenue 

sources are identified to offset related expenses or unless otherwise directed by the Board. 
 

3. Recurring Tax/Expense Guidelines: Limit any unnecessary or significant increases in the recommended ad-
valorem or other tax rates unless otherwise directed by the Board and attempt to: 

 

a. Maintain the same 2%/July - 1%/Aug early tax payment discount as the current fiscal year.   
 

b. Maintain the same .01 cent collected special watershed improvement tax (SWIT) revenue to fund 
countywide drainage related expenses as recommended by the Drainage Advisory Board. 
 

c. Maintain the same .04 cents collected ad-valorem tax revenue for funding fire service operations 
pursuant to the County Fire Commission Ordinance and Commission recommendations. 

 

i. Maintain the same .01 cent collected ad-valorem tax revenue to fund certain additional 
capital outlay needs for fire departments.  Funds to accrue until utilized or repurposed. 

 

d. Closely monitor and review the ongoing PK12 School Project budget, costs, and new debt service, 
and make realistic and fiscally responsible recommendations related to the possible need to 
consider raising additional tax revenues if deemed necessary to maintain overall financial stability. 

 



FY25 Budget Preparation Guidelines for the Budget Officer  Page 2 of 2 
 

e. Continue allocating at least the full recommended annual contribution for the Washington County 
Hospital Pension Plan as recommended by the most recent actuarial report, and recommend ways 
to utilize budget allocations to proactively manage future pension plan liabilities. 

 

f. Maintain the recurring annual allocation of:  
i. $10,000 per year for a future PARTF recreation grant; 

ii. $12,000 per year cap for Special Board Sponsored Third Party Funding; 
 

4. Personnel Guidelines: For personnel budgeting purposes, attempt to: 
 

a. Avoid creating new positions unless funded by a specific new revenue source, unless the position 
was previously cut for expense reduction purposes and/or unless the benefits of its restoration or 
creation are considered to outweigh the additional expenses. 
 

b. Identify and propose corrections for any major irregularities or inequities in the Washington County 
Salary Schedule & YORE Progressive Pay Plan, and evaluate the potential need for countywide 
adjustments to compensate for wage inflation factors.  
 

c. Pass through to employees the cost of any premium increases for spousal/family benefits such as 
health, dental, vision, etc. 

 

5. Other Specific Board Guidance or Initial Requests from Individual Board Members:  
 

a. Before FY26:  
i. Review and address any serious detention facility concerns; 

ii. Review Sheriff LEO Pay; 
iii. Repair Landfill Bulldozer using previously approved CIP funding for truck purchase; 
iv. If possible, move up Ambulance purchase, before 7/1/25 reg changes to save overall cost; 
v. CIP Items: Add TOP Lift Station Proj; Add Coop Ext. Carpet Repl; Itemize WC Think 

Tank Projects 
vi. Determine feasibility of moving revaluation up from 2029 to 2027. 

vii. Go-Live with Keystone Tax Software Conversion by end of FY25; 
 

b. Attempt to merge the Senior Center into/under Recreation 
c. Merge Landfill into/under Water; and consider ways to sell mulch/concrete profitably at Landfill; 
d. Without lowering quality, review and try limiting growing costs for DSS child services/placement  
e. Review potential impact of the new EMTOC facility on personnel/dept. structure, (particularly 

E911) and recommend potential ways to maximize revenues &/or personnel efficiencies. 
f. Review potential impact of new Economic Development FTE position, and recommend potential 

ways to maximize revenues &/or personnel efficiencies, including Econ Dev. Budget Structure. 
g. Find ways to align/prioritize recurring or major budget requests with new Strat. Planning process. 
h. Review Tax position conversion from Deputy Admin to Analyst. 
i. Consider alternatives for PT Airport Tech incl. possibly splitting/sharing add’l Maintenance Tech. 
j. Consider increasing holiday employee appreciation banquet to add primary PT staff. 
k. Consider increasing the current PO limit to help reduce administrative burdens 

 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     February 3, 2025 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Request for Funding for Temporary Clerk of Court Position, Mr. Keith 

Phelps, Clerk of Court 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Phelps talked about this with the Board during the Budget workshop.  Please see the 
attached information. 
 
Also, Mr. Potter will discuss the AOC contract.   
See attached. 
 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo for Regular Board Meeting 20250203 Page 1 of 1 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

 

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEMO Date:   January 30th, 2025         MEETING Date: February 3rd, 2025   ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Request for Funding of Temporary Clerk of Court Position 
DEPARTMENT: Clerk of Court    
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager / County Attorney 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Emails from Clerk of Court requesting additional funding (6pgs) 
B- Proposed Contract w/ NC AOC (6pgs) 

PURPOSE:  To consider approving an additional funding request from the Clerk of Court to fund a temporary 
position for five (5) months to prevent a loss of current staffing that would otherwise occur due to a loss of AOC 
funding. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Refer to attached emails summarized as follows: 

1. 1/7/25 Initial funding consideration request from the Clerk of Court to the County Manager; 
2. 1/14/25 Response to County Manager’s initial questions 
3. 1/24/25 Subsequent email to County Manager & Finance Officer 

This matter was also recently presented to and discussed in the Board’s FY26 Budget Planning Workshop on  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  $15,968 from 2/1/25 to 6/30/25. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  REVIEW the attached information and proposed contract, and 

 
1. VOTE on whether to APPROVE the additional funding requested by the Clerk of Court by 

authorizing and directing the County Manager and Finance Officer to execute and deliver the 
proposed contract with any modifications made by the County Attorney in the County’s favor to the 
Administrative Office of the Courts, and to transfer the necessary funding from contingency or other 
available funds within the general fund budget for such purpose. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
CAROL V. PHELPS, CHAIR 

JOHN C. SPRUILL, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

ANN C. KEYES  

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 
 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



From: Phelps, Brian K. <brian.k.phelps@nccourts.org>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 7, 2025 3:49 PM 
To: Curtis Potter <cpotter@washconc.org> 
Subject: County Funding of Temporary Deputy Clerk Position 

 

Curtis, 

 

     I am writing you concerning a dire staffing situation in this office.  I have been informed that the 
temporary Deputy Clerk position in this office will not be funded after January 31, 2025, so I will be 
losing an essential position.  The temporary Deputy Clerk serves as the primary cashier and is who 
currently receipts payment of child support purge payments, fines, and court costs, provides front 
counter coverage in the civil division, processes filings in Small Claims Court and provides general 
coverage elsewhere in the office.  This staff member has mastered the Enterprise Justice software, 
which allows citizens to be served in a timely manner in filing Small Claims cases and paying 
money as ordered by the Court. The Washington County Clerk of Superior Court’s Office is a small 
office, with five non-temporary positions and one temporary position as well as me.  This office is 
physically divided, in that the office is separated by a public accessible hallway in the Washington 
County Courthouse, with two (non-temporary positions) staff members in the criminal division and 
four (three non-temporary positions and one temporary position) staff members in the civil division, 
which also serves as the cashier station.  My private office, which is in the criminal division, is 
where estate and special proceedings matters are filed, processed and most hearings for these 
matters are held.  The staff members in this office wear multiple hats due to the workload of this 
office and the need to segregate duties in the financial work of this office.  The financial team of this 
office consists of one bookkeeper, two head cashiers, two cashiers (one of whom is the temporary 
Deputy Clerk) and one back-up cashier, who is also a criminal staff member.  As you can see the 
financial team consists of my entire staff.       

  

     Enterprise Justice in the courtroom setting requires the use of two courtroom clerks to process 
judgments/orders, enter in financial data for payments and handle other clerical business of the 
Court.  Currently, I have two criminal staff members (one of whom serves as the backup cashier) to 
provide coverage at criminal/traffic sessions of District Court and two civil staff members (one of 
whom serves as the secondary cashier) to provide coverage at civil/child support sessions of 
District Court.  If a Deputy Clerk position is lost, then I will be unable to send two clerks to provide 
courtroom coverage for traffic, criminal, civil and child support sessions of District Court as one of 
the two clerks who is also a cashier must be in the office to receipt payments of child support purge 
payments, fines and court costs, provide front counter coverage in the civil division and process 
filings in Small Claims Court, which will result in a massive backlog in Washington County District 
Court.  Further, a massive backlog may result in the exodus of longtime staff members, which will 
only add to the backlog.  Please know that I am not making threats, but stating what I fear will be a 
certainty if this office loses a Deputy Clerk position.  Additionally, to operate this office with only 
one cashier is a heading for disaster.  If sole cashier is out unexpectedly due to illness or injury, then 

mailto:brian.k.phelps@nccourts.org
mailto:cpotter@washconc.org


there will be no one available to receipt payments or I will have to serve as the cashier.  A few years 
ago, I was having to serve as the cashier while attempting to conduct a hearing in an estate matter 
and had to take a recess to receipt a child support purge payment.  As stated previously, this office 
is physically divided by a public accessible hallway, so I had to take a recess, walk across the 
hallway to the cashier station, receipt the child support purge payment, process the child support 
purge transmittal form, go back into the hallway, get stopped in the hallway by a citizen with a 
question, get back into my private office and regain my thoughts to resume the hearing, while the 
parties to the hearing had been sitting for over thirty minutes.  Having to halt the proceeding before 
me, I felt was an injustice to those that were appearing before me and a violation of my obligation as 
a judicial official to provide justice without unnecessary delay.      

  

    I am the sole person in the Estates, Special Proceedings and Civil Superior Court Divisions as I 
simply do not have enough staff members to cover these areas.  On Tuesdays, when there is a 
criminal/traffic session of District Court, I am in the office alone, which requires me to answer the 
telephone and handle walk-in traffic, all while attempting to handle estates and special proceeding 
matters in addition to my administrative duties as the Clerk of Superior Court.  A few months ago, 
one of the two criminal staff members was out with COVID AND the flu, which required me to serve 
as one of the two courtroom clerks at a criminal/traffic session of District Court.  Since there was 
no one to provide coverage for criminal, estates and special proceeding matters, I was forced to 
completely shut down these divisions as I did not have enough staff members to staff these areas 
and individuals that needed to transact criminal, estates and special proceedings business were 
turned away.  Again, this office is a small office, where the staff members wear multiple hats and 
one staff member being out of the office can create a strain on the work of this office.  Further, staff 
members should be able to be out due to illness or vacation without worrying about the strain they 
are creating by being out of the office.  I am very concerned that if I lose a Deputy Clerk position, 
this office is heading for collapse.     

  

    I have contacted my legislative delegation via email for assistance as well as to request a meeting 
with them when I visited the General Assembly with other elected Clerks of Superior Court in May 
and received no response.  My plan is to begin making telephone calls to my legislative delegation 
when the General Assembly convenes on January 8, 2025.   On December 11, myself, and Clerk 
Goodwin from Chowan County, who has a temporary Deputy Clerk position that is essential to the 
function of his office, traveled to the NC Judicial Center to meet with NC AOC Director Boyce and 
Deputy Director Kyzer about the dire staffing situation in our respective offices.  Clerk Goodwin and 
I were appreciative for Director Boyce and Deputy Director Kyzer taking the time out of their busy 
schedules to meet with us.  We also expressed our appreciation for the temporary Deputy Clerk 
positions in our offices.  Director Boyce informed Clerk Goodwin and myself that the financial 
resources to fund temporary positions were depleted, offered suggestions, such as cross-training 
of staff, which is used by this office as well as the use of “Magi-clerks”, which is not an option as the 
three Magistrates in Washington County have been renominated and reappointed for a four-year 
term.  As the Clerk of Superior Court, who is elected by the citizens of Washington County, I feel 
that I have a duty to provide an efficient District and Superior Court to the citizens of Washington 



County and to do otherwise would be a disservice to them as well as a violation of the oath of office 
of the Clerk of Superior Court. 

 

     Since this office serves the citizens of Washington County, would Washington County fund the 
temporary Deputy Clerk position in this office?  I was wondering if the salary allotted for a vacant 
county position could be used to fund the temporary Deputy Clerk position until the end of the 
fiscal year.  The position would not require any benefits only an hourly wage.  I am glad to meet with 
you to discuss this matter.    

  

     Thank you for allowing me this opportunity as well as for all that you do for the citizens of 
Washington County.   

  

Sincerely, 

  

BKP 

  

 

Brian K. “Keith” Phelps 

Clerk of Superior Court 
Washington County 

North Carolina Judicial Branch 

Office:   (252)791-4000 
Estates: (252)791-4004  
Fax:        (252)791-4001  

  

Justice for all 

www.NCcourts.gov 

  

 

 

  

http://www.nccourts.gov/
http://www.nccourts.org/
https://www.facebook.com/NCcourts
https://www.linkedin.com/company/north-carolina-administrative-office-of-the-courts
https://twitter.com/NCCourts
https://www.youtube.com/user/NorthCarolinaCourts


From: Phelps, Brian K. <brian.k.phelps@nccourts.org>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 14, 2025 3:56 PM 
To: Curtis Potter <cpotter@washconc.org> 
Cc: Missy Dixon <mdixon@washconc.org>; Jason Squires <ACM@washconc.org> 
Subject: RE: County Funding of Temporary Deputy Clerk Position 

 

Curtis, 

 

     Thank you for taking the time to share and discuss this matter with Missy as well as respond to 
me.  I know this time of year is busy for you both and appreciate you both taking the time for this 
matter.  In my previous email, I failed to mention that my request is pursuant G.S. 7A-102(e) and 
G.S. 153A-212.1, where a Clerk of Superior Court may apply to the Director of the North Carolina 
Administrative Office of the Courts to enter into contracts with local governments for the provision 
by the State of services of Assistant Clerks, Deputy Clerks and other employees in the Office of the 
Clerk of Superior Court and upon the local appropriation of funds to do so.  I wanted to see if 
Washington County would be able to fund a Deputy Clerk position in this office before reaching out 
to the Director of the North Carolina Administrative Office of the Courts.  In response to your 
questions: 

1. How much funding specifically are you looking for?  The temporary position is currently paid 
$16.00 per hour and works 40 hours a week.  Based upon my calculations, the gross weekly 
pay is $640.00 per week, $2,560.00 per month and for the five-month period (February to 
June) would be $12,800.00.  I am requesting a total of $12,800.00 to fund the temporary 
position.        

2. Is this a full-time or part-time position?  The temporary position is a full-time position. 

3. What is the annual pay rate?  The gross annual pay rate at $16.00 per hour is $30,720.00. 

4. Why will it not include benefits?  The temporary position that is currently funded by the 
State does not have benefits. 

5. Why would it only be required through the end of this fiscal year?   The temporary Deputy 
Clerk position, in this office,  will not be funded after January 31, 2025 as the funding for 
certain temporary positions, such as the temporary Deputy Clerk position in this office, are 
needed elsewhere in the Judicial Branch.  The positions in the Clerk of Superior Court’s 
Office are funded through legislative appropriation.  This year is a “long session”,  so the 
General Assembly will pass the State budget for 2025-2026 before adjourning. I have 
reached out to my legislative delegation, the President Pro-Tempore of the North Carolina 
Senate, the Speaker of the North Carolina House of Representatives and Co-Chairs of the 
Justice and Public Safety Committee asking if the temporary Deputy Clerk position in this 
office can be funded or if an additional Deputy Clerk position can be gained through 
legislative appropriation.  Further, I have met with the Director and Deputy Director of the 
North Carolina Administrative Office of the Court as well as spoken with the Chief Justice 

mailto:brian.k.phelps@nccourts.org
mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:ACM@washconc.org


asking for their assistance with this matter.  If Washington County would fund the temporary 
Deputy Clerk position until the end of the fiscal year, this would allow me to have adequate 
staff to operate this office and serve the citizens of Washington County, during my attempt 
to either get funding for the temporary Deputy Clerk position or gain an additional Deputy 
Clerk position through legislative appropriation.         

6. What will happen after that?  If the temporary position is not funded or an additional Deputy 
Clerk position is not gained, through either legislative or local government appropriation, 
then the position would be lost.  

7. Who would the County actually pay the funding to?  The funding would be paid to the 
individual for their service as a Deputy Clerk. 

8. When is the deadline for a decision by the County on this?  The position is funded by the 
State through January 31, 2025.  I am at the Board of County Commissioners pleasure on 
their making a decision.    

9. Are there any other possible alternatives that could help short of covering staff salary 
costs?  The alternatives are the implementation of a Magi-Clerk position, which is a Deputy 
Clerk that performs the duties of a Magistrate during office hours.  The drawback of this 
option is that a Magi-Clerk is used in lieu of one of the three Magistrate position allotted to 
Washington County.  The three Washington County Magistrates have been reappointed for 
four-year terms.  The second alternative is cross training staff members, which is utilized by 
this office.  I have investigated obtaining grants to fund the temporary Deputy Clerk position 
and have been unsuccessful.  Short of legislative appropriation funding the temporary 
Deputy Clerk position or creating an additional Deputy Clerk position, asking Washington 
County to fund a Deputy Clerk position is the last option for this matter.    

At the end of the day, this is a fairly unusual request, which will need to be shared with and agreed 
to by the Board itself.   

10. Would you be able to present this and speak with them next Wednesday 2/15/25 or 
Thursday 2/16/25 during their workshop meetings?  I am willing to speak with the Board of 
County Commissioners about this matter at their workshop meeting on February 15 or 16, 
2025.  I did see that these dates are a Saturday and Sunday, respectively, but am willing to 
address the Board of County Commissioners about this matter. 

Lastly, at least one Commissioner is asking us to begin considering a New Courthouse as a 
downrange capital improvement item.  I am curious where you would stand on that, and wanted 
you to be aware of this in case you get asked about by the Board.  I will be glad to share my thoughts 
with you in person at your convenience.  Thank you for making me aware of this.   

     Thank you for allowing me this opportunity and for all that you do for the citizens of Washington 
County.  If you have any additional questions, please let me know. 

Sincerely, 

BKP 



Dear Curtis and Missy, 

 

     Attached is the budget and contract for the Deputy Clerk position.  The budget is attached to the 
contract, but I thought it would be easier to review as a separate attachment.  The numbers that NC 
AOC came up with a little higher than mine.  There were costs for the position’s share of office 
supplies, hardware/software use and data connection, which I was not aware were costs, which I 
should have been as nothing in life is free.  If the numbers are higher than what can be funded, I will 
adjust the position’s working hours accordingly.  If the Board of County Commissioners approves 
funds for the position, the position would be paid by NC AOC, who would invoice Washington 
County for reimbursement.  If you have any questions, please let me know.  I will be glad to answer 
or if I do not know the answer, defer to someone who can.  Thank you for your assistance with this 
matter. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

BKP 

 

 

Brian K. “Keith” Phelps 

Clerk of Superior Court 
Washington County 

North Carolina Judicial Branch 

Office:   (252)791-4000 
Estates: (252)791-4004  
Fax:        (252)791-4001  

 

Justice for all 

www.NCcourts.gov 

 

 

 

http://www.nccourts.gov/
http://www.nccourts.org/
https://www.facebook.com/NCcourts
https://www.linkedin.com/company/north-carolina-administrative-office-of-the-courts
https://twitter.com/NCCourts
https://www.youtube.com/user/NorthCarolinaCourts


NORTH CAROLINA 

 

WASHINGTON COUNTY 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into, by, and between Washington County, 

(hereinafter “the County”); Brain K. Phelps, Clerk of Superior Court, Washington 

County, (hereinafter “the Clerk”); and the North Carolina Administrative Office of the 

Courts (hereinafter “the NCAOC”); (collectively, the “Parties” and individually, a 

“Party”), effective as of the date the last Party signs below. 

 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

THAT WHEREAS, the Clerk has applied to the NCAOC Director, pursuant to G.S. 7A-

102(e), for authority to hire one temporary Deputy Clerk;  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to G.S. 153A-212.1, the County may appropriate funds under 

contract with the NCAOC for the provision of services for the speedy disposition of cases 

involving a threat to public safety;  

 

WHEREAS, the County has appropriated funds to implement a program of expediting 

these cases and has budgeted the annualized sum to pay for the personnel position costs 

for each position listed in Appendix A, which Appendix A is attached hereto and is 

incorporated herein as if fully set out;  

 

WHEREAS, the NCAOC Director has found that the Clerk has made a showing, 

pursuant to G.S. 7A-102(e), that the overwhelming public interest warrants the use of 

additional resources for the speedy disposition of cases involving a threat to public safety 

within the meaning of that statute;  

 

WHEREAS, the County desires to pay to the NCAOC on behalf of the Clerk the 

amounts specified herein for the use by the Clerk to hire personnel as shown in Appendix 

A;  

 

WHEREAS, the NCAOC is responsible for administering the receipts and expenditures 

of the Judicial Branch, including the office of the Clerk; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have mutually agreed to the terms of this Agreement as 

hereinafter set out. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, 

the County does hereby agree to provide funds and the NCAOC agrees to administer the 

funds on behalf of the Clerk for the position(s) shown in Appendix A. 

 

 

 



Washington County 
Temporary Deputy Clerk 

Page 2 of 5 

THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of 5 months, beginning on February 

1, 2025 and terminating on June 30, 2025.   

 

2. The employee(s) under this contract will be the employee(s) of the Clerk accordingly 

for all purposes, and shall be hired by and work under the supervision and direction of 

the Clerk of Superior Court for Washington County. 

 

3. The County will be responsible for paying the personnel and operating costs as 

budgeted and other related costs that may arise. Any changes in salary shall be 

communicated in writing to the County, the Clerk, and the NCAOC. The parties agree 

to act in good faith to facilitate such budget amendments as may be necessary from 

time to time. The Clerk shall provide space and furnishings for their staff positions 

under this agreement commensurate with other staff offices. The NCAOC shall 

provide administrative services (including Human Resources processing and payroll 

services) pursuant to this Agreement, but shall not contribute funds or be responsible 

for paying any operating expenses of the project, nor shall the NCAOC or County be 

responsible for the hiring or supervision of the positions. 

 

4. The County shall provide funds to the NCAOC Chief Fiscal Officer as outlined in 

Appendix A. Expenses for unemployment, workers compensation and disability 

claims, as outlined in paragraph 9 below, are unforeseen expenses which are not 

included in Appendix A and may increase the County’s financial obligation above 

and beyond the base amount indicated in Appendix A, should a claim be filed.   

 

5. All payment of funds must be made electronically via an account with the North 

Carolina Department of State Treasurer, as established through the NCAOC and the 

North Carolina Office of the State Controller. After each electronic payment of funds, 

the County must then notify NCAOC’s Cash Management Division via email, 

NCJC.FSD.CashManagement@nccourts.org, detailing the amount and relevant 

month for which the payment applies, or by attaching the relevant invoice to the 

email. 

 

6. The County agrees to provide to the NCAOC all operating costs associated with the 

position(s) in this contract in accordance with annual NCAOC position cost 

statements supplied by the NCAOC Financial Services Division, as shown in 

Appendix A. Typical operating costs in NCAOC position cost statements represent 

expenditures such as transportation, meals and lodging, registration fees, maintenance 

agreements, general office supplies, telephone service and equipment, personal 

computer, software, and wiring and installation. Using funds provided by the County, 

the NCAOC will purchase and maintain all equipment outlined in Appendix A. The 

County will submit payment upon the receipt of a detailed invoice.   

 

7. If the County fails to pay an invoice within 30 days of receipt, the NCAOC will apply 

the requisite amount of court facilities fees collected pursuant to G.S. 7A-304 and 

mailto:NCJC.FSD.CashManagement@nccourts.org


Washington County 
Temporary Deputy Clerk 

Page 3 of 5 

7A-305 toward the outstanding invoice amount. If the County chooses to remit 

payment to the NCAOC after the court facilities fees have already been applied to the 

outstanding invoice amount, the NCAOC will reclassify the amount of court facilities 

fees allocated to the outstanding invoice so that that County will receive its full share 

of court facilities fees pursuant to G.S. 7A-304 and 7A-305. 

 

8. The County agrees that it will increase the payments under this Agreement by the 

amount necessary to provide for each of the following increases in the compensation 

or benefits of any person whose position is funded under this Agreement, with each 

increase to become effective on the effective date of the relevant increase in 

compensation or benefits. Should the amounts needed for any increase exceed ten 

percent (10%) of the total contract amount, the County must agree in writing to any 

amount in excess of ten percent (10%) of the total contract amount. If the County 

does not agree in writing to pay the amount in excess of ten percent (10%), then the 

parties may terminate this contract in accordance with paragraph 11 below. 
 

a. Any increase in salary due to legislative act, reclassification, in-range 

adjustment, or longevity   
 

b. Any increase in salary to which any assistant or deputy clerk is entitled under 

the pay plan adopted pursuant to G.S. 7A-102 
 

c. Any legislatively mandated increase in the employer contributions to the 

North Carolina Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System or the 

Consolidated Judicial Retirement System 
 

d. Any legislatively mandated increase in the employer’s premium to provide 

coverage under the North Carolina Teachers’ and State Employees’ Major 

Medical Plan 

 

9. The County agrees to reimburse the NCAOC for any and all costs arising from an 

unemployment, workers’ compensation and/or disability claim submitted by an 

employee under this contract who qualifies for such payments based on his/her 

duration of employment with the Judicial Branch. The County agrees to reimburse the 

NCAOC for all costs arising from any such claim that is submitted after the contract 

period specified in paragraph 1 above, so long as the termination of employment or 

injury that is the subject of such claim occurred during said contract period. Costs 

arising from unemployment, workers’ compensation and/or disability claims are not 

included in Appendix A and may result in costs in excess of those outlined in 

paragraph 4 above. Absent a specific line item in Appendix A for unemployment, 

workers’ compensation, and/or disability costs, such costs may be offset and covered 

with (i) funds reallocated from other line items, where available; and/or (ii) lapsed 

salary resulting from vacant positions under this Agreement. Vacant positions under 

this Agreement may be held vacant for an extended period of time to ensure that there 

will be a sufficient amount of lapsed salary with which to reimburse the NCAOC for 

any such claims. This provision does not limit the authority of the Office of the North 

Carolina Attorney General to represent the NCAOC in any litigation that may arise 

hereunder. Additionally, the NCAOC may purchase workers’ compensation insurance 



Washington County 
Temporary Deputy Clerk 

Page 4 of 5 

to cover any workers’ compensation claims that may be filed in accordance with this 

Agreement. The County agrees to reimburse the NCAOC for the cost of workers’ 

compensation insurance premiums and deductibles paid by the NCAOC. The 

NCAOC will send an invoice to the County for payment of any and all costs arising 

from an unemployment, workers’ compensation and/or disability claim and for 

insurance premiums and deductibles and the County shall pay any invoice not later 

than 30 days after the County’s receipt of the invoice.       

 

10. The NCAOC and the County shall maintain all appropriate documentation of 

expenditures under this contract for examination by the Office of the State Auditor. 

The NCAOC shall provide to the County, and the County shall provide to the 

NCAOC, copies of said documentation upon request. 

 

11. This Agreement may be terminated by the County, the NCAOC, or the Clerk upon 

giving sixty (60) days’ notice in writing or by mutual consent of all parties. 

 

12. It is understood and agreed between the County, the Clerk, and the NCAOC that the 

renewal or extension of the payment specified in this Agreement is dependent upon 

and subject to the allocation, availability, or appropriation of funds by the County. 

 

13.  It is understood and agreed between the County, the Clerk, and the NCAOC that this 

Agreement is entered into pursuant to G.S. 7A-102(e) and 153A-212.1, and that 

nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to obligate the NCAOC to maintain or 

request funding for positions or services initially provided under this Agreement. 

 

14.  This Agreement may be amended by written agreements executed by all parties, 

except that if the only change is an increase in positions and corresponding costs, then 

only the County and the NCAOC need sign the amendment. 

 

15.  This Agreement, including Appendix A, is the entire Agreement among the parties 

and there are no other Agreements, oral, written, expressed or implied. 

 

16. This Agreement and any amendments or modifications hereto, to the extent signed in 

handwriting and then delivered by means of electronic transmission in portable 

document format (“PDF”), shall be treated in all manner and respects as an original 

agreement or instrument, and shall be considered to have the same force and legal 

effect as an original signature.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Washington County 
Temporary Deputy Clerk 

Page 5 of 5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, or their duly authorized representatives, have 

executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. The undersigned County Manager 

agrees to provide the NCAOC with copies of minutes or other documentation authorizing 

them to execute this contract on behalf of the County. 

 

 

WASHINGTON COUNTY      

 

BY: ______________________________      Date: _________________ 

   County Manager  

 

 

 

CLERK OF SUPERIOR COURT 

WASHINGTON COUNTY 

 

BY: ______________________________     Date: __________________ 

  Clerk 

 

 

 

NORTH CAROLINA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS 

 

BY: ______________________________     Date: __________________ 

   Kesha Howell 

   NCAOC Chief Operations Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved as to Form                                       This instrument has been pre-audited in the 

 manner required by the Local Government 

 Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

______________________________ ______________________________ 

County Attorney    County Finance Director 

 

 

______________________________ ______________________________ 

Date      Date 



Estimated Contract Cost 1/21/2025

Invoices will be based on actual, not estimated, costs.

State FY 2025

Costs

Salary & Longevity ($16/hr, 8hr/day, 104 days) 13,312 3

Social Security 7.65% 1,019

Retirement 24.04% 0 1

Health Insurance 0 1

Workers' Compensation 67

Unemployment 292

Office Supplies 333

Training/Conference Registration Fees 0 1

Hardware, Software, Support Services 650 2

Data Infrastructure 295 2

Bar Dues 0 1

Duty Station Parking 0 1

Cell Phone 0 1

Travel

     Mileage ($0.67/mile) 0 1

     Lodging ($90/day) 0 1

     Per diem ($47/day) 0 1

Total Estimated Cost $15,968

1  Expenses not anticipated during this fiscal year.
2  Expenses are invoiced regardless of position vacancy status.

3  Budgeted salary; actual salary is determined by NCAOC Human Resources

APPENDIX A

Position Title: Temporary Deputy Clerk
February 1 - June 30



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Departmental Information Update—Soil & Water, Mr. Chris Respass, 

Soil & Water Coordinator 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
This month, Mr. Respass will speak to the Board and give them an update on what is 
going on in Soil & Water and what to expect in the coming months. 
 
If you have a request to hear from a certain department, please contact the Clerk. 
 
Month   Department   Director     
JAN Senior Center   Renee’ Collier  
FEB Soil & Water   Chris Respass 
MAR   
APR 
MAY 
JUNE   
JULY   
AUG   
SEPT   
OCT    
NOV   
DEC 
 

 
 
 
 
 



List of Departments 
 

  Planning/Inspections  Human Resources 
  EM    Tax  
  EMS    Soil & Water 
  Elections   Utilities 
  Detention   DSS 
  Airport    Facilities 
  Landfill   TTA 
  Finance   Library 
  Register of Deeds  Soil & Water 
  MTW    Sheriff’s Office 
  Senior Center   IT 
  Recreation   E911 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:       S.T.R.A.P. Bids, Mr. Chris Respass, Soil & Water 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Please see that attached information on the abovementioned bids.  Mr. Respass will be 
asking for your approval to approve his recommended bidder. 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 

CAROL V. PHELPS, CHAIR 

JOHN C. SPRUILL, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
ANN C.KEYES 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

Washington County 

,��111Mt�/ 
� 

POST OFFICE BOX I 007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 

CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM 
COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 

cpotter@washconc.org 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 

CATHERINE "MISSY" DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

MEMO Date: MEETING Date: February 3, 2025 ITEM: 

SUBJECT: 

DEPARTMENT: 

FROM: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

February 3, 2025 

S.t.r.a.p Funds Bid Award 

Soil and Water Department 

Christopher Respess

A- Bid Tabulation(lpg)
B- Minutes of January 27, 2025 Soil and Water Board 

Meeting
C- Email For S.t.r.a.p.

PURPOSE: To award the bid winner for the Stream Restoration Contract with the State of North Carolina and 
Washington County. 

BACKGROUND: 
The bid tabulation is attached with the contractor recommended by the Soil and Water Board and the Department 
Head highlighted. Also attached are the Minutes reflecting the Soil and Water Board's recommendation, along 
with an email that confirms the grant does not require going with the lowest bidder. 

Summary of Key Features: 
1. Purpose and Scope: These funds will be used to remove vegetative debris in Washington County's major 

flowing waterways. 15% of the total funds encumbered were intended to be used to purchase a UTV for 
the Drainage Department to increase operational abilities.

2. Concept of Operations: 8.85 Miles of Waterways here in Washington County are to be Snagged and 
Cleared to a standard that will reduce the amount of debris within the streams tremendously, coupled with 
methods that will prevent what is removed from returning to the stream bed.

3. 15% Requirements: To use the 15% of funds for equipment purchase we have to first encumbered a 
certain amount in order to maximize what we have as a total. The highlighted bid within the bid tabulation 
provides the ability to purchase the intended UTV that was mentioned at the beginning of this process.

4. Cost of Operation: The average price per foot in the coastal plane region is $10.86 per foot. Bids 
below $3.00 per foot are considered by the Department of Soil and Water as high risk and irresponsible 
based on the average cost of operations.

Agenda Item Memo for Regular Board Meeting 20250203 Page 1 of2 













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO: 6 
 
DATE: February 3, 2025 

ITEM: Tax Collector’s Report, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 

 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 

 
Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator, will give the Board the Tax Collector’s Report 
which she is required to do by statute. 

 
Ms. Wilkins will distribute her report during the meeting. 

 
 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA STATEMENT 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:  February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Economic Development/Strategic Plan (Part 2)  Update, Mr. Kelly 

Chesson, Economic Development Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

- Mr. Chesson has been hired by the County as our new full-time Economic & 
Strategic Development Director and will provide an update from the recently 
attended NC East Alliance’s Vision 2025 conference in Greenville, NC. 

-  
“A crucial event where we’ll focus on the progress made in eastern North Carolina and 
the next steps needed for continued growth. This year’s event will showcase the impact of 
STEM East’s initiatives and dive into important discussions about workforce 
development, economic growth, community advancement, and uncovering hidden talent 
across the region. This is an invaluable opportunity for businesses, educators, and local 
leaders to come together and align on strategies for a stronger, more competitive eastern 
NC. Whether you’re a business owner, educator, or community advocate, your input will 
help guide our collective vision moving forward.” 
 

- EDC Update: Once appointments of the majority of EDC members are confirmed, 
staff will work to conduct an initial EDC meeting and which his presently 
anticipated to be set for some time in March. 

 
- He will also provide a brief review of progress made on the “Sustainable 

Economic Growth & Development” and “Strong Educational Opportunities” 
portions of the County’s strategic plan.   

 
- Staff seeks ongoing input on any desired changes to the specific goals and/or 

action items for these sections and hopes to present a draft revised Strategic Plan 
& CIP in March for potential final approval by April. 

 



Sustainable Economic Growth and Development Last Revised/Updated: 1/23/2025
Goal 1
Goal 2
Goal 3
Goal 4

Goals Primary Contact / Department Barriers/Alt Solutions Short‐Term Priorities Ongoing Timeline % Done Comments/Next Steps

ECO2024.1

Re‐establish an Economic Development Committee or other 
similar body to meet regularly and begin developing and 
coordinating a more formalized county economic 
development program.

1 Kelly Chesson / CMO
Establish Bylaws; 
BOCC Approval & Member Appointment; 
Initial Meeting

Schedule regularly recurring committee mtgs 20%

ECO2024.2

Work with the Washington County Travel and Tourism 
Agency (TTA) to continue supportiung and to better measure 
and understand the economic impact of tourism 
development (approved as the primary economic 
development pursuit by the Board of Commissioners).

1 CMO/CFO/EDC: CSP/MD/KC
KC to pull TT stats for review and discussion with 
TTA/BOCC

Continuous 50%
Consider revising this goal 
as too broad/generic?

ECO2024.3

Hold recurring collaborative duscussions with municipal 
partners to identify and pursue mutually beneficial economic 
development strategies and opportunities including 
community development.

1 CMO: KC & EDC
Add representation from municipal partners into 
EDC

0%
Consider collapsing into 
EDC; bylaws were adopted 
for EDC to do this

ECO2024.4
Re‐establish and hold regular meetings of the Collaborative 
Business & Industry Innovation Council.

1 CMO: CSP/KC KC to set up initial collaboration meeting ASAP
Continuous; Est. initial mtg to discuss collaboration 
by 12/31/25 and develop CY2025 Timeline for 
Further Action

50%
Overlaps with EDU 24.6; 
consider collapsing/revising

ECO2024.5
Work with the GoldenLEAF SITE program to identify and 
create a countywide database and futire development plan 
for future targeted economic development.

2 CMO/CFO: CSP/JS/KS/LZ
KC to develop/link database for website inclusion 
ASAP

Continuous; work with EDC to review sites and 
prioritize targets/development plans for inclusion in 
FY26 Budget/6/30/25

50%
Pursue acquisition and 
development of preferred 
track.

ECO2024.6A
Complete the dedication of the Morratock Road Sewer Line 
to the Town of Plymouth. 

2 CMO: CSP
CSP to finish dedication agreement draft for TOP 
review

Complete dedication by 6/30/25 10%

ECO2024.6B
Begin construction on major VUR/Utility grand funded utility 
projects to increase water capacity and efficiencies.

2
CMO/CFO: CSP/KC/JS/MD/LZ
WC‐Utilities: LS

KC: FILL IN TIMELINE INFO 35%

ECO2024.7
Continue pursuing opportunities to expand affordable 
broadband access countywide.

2 John Waterman / CMO

CAI Challenge Period ends October 3.
Attend NCDIT Town Hall December 5.
Keep pace with other updates from NCDIT as‐
needed.

ISP partner Brightspeed plans to serve 1,267 of 1,272 
eligible locations in the county with CAB funding. All 
CAB construction must be completed by October 
2026. 
Remaining locations may be served with state BEAD 
funds to be appropriated in Q1 2025.

75%
Consider revising goal to 
aline with measurable stat

ECO2024.8

Designate a primary staff person to attend and regularly 
report information gathered from North‐Eastern Economic 
Development (NEED) & other key regional economic 
development meetings.

3 CMO: KC
Set up next NEED mtg and push for pre‐set 
quarterly mtg schedule

Continuous; 100%
Revise goal to include 
desired outcome from 
participating in this group.

ECO2024.9
Engage lobbyist to pursue targeted economic development 
funding opportunities during upcoming legislative sessions.

3 BOCC & CMO: CSP 100%
Define specific requests for 
long session in 2025

ECO2024.10
Create and adopt a standing economic development 
incentive policy designed to attract additional and/or outside 
economic investment opportunities.

4 CMO: KC
Create draft policy; review with EDC; review and 
approval by BOCC

Draft created in FY24; review with new EDC in early 
2025 and seek BOCC approval by 6/30/25

33% EDC review

Action Items

Collaborate with educational and industrial partners to develop and deliver a more formally organized, proactive, and effective economic development program.
Provide well‐planned and strategically placed infrastructure to attract and support continued economic development and growth, particularly for private business and industry.
Leverage partners and stakeholders to enhance economic development capacity and opportunities.
Attract, retrain, and increase a diverse and sustainable tax base.



Strong Educational Opportunities Last Revised/Updated: 1/23/2025

Goal 1

Goal 2
Goal 3
Goal 4

Goalsmary Contact / Departm Barriers/Alt Solutions Short‐Term Priorities Ongoing Timeline % Done Comments/Next Steps

EDU2024.1A
Monitor and support the successful completion of the new 
PK‐12 School at US64/NC45.

1 CMO/CFO: CSP/JS/MD Logistics/Timing
Lease Agreement/Funding Agreement 
Revisions/ Punck List Completion

1. CO by 12/4/24;
2. WCS Using School by 1/31/25
3. Punch List Completion by 3/1/25

90% Complete Phase II

EDU2024.1B
Work with the Town of Plymouth to prepare lift station 
capacity for new facility.

1 CMO: KC
Grant Cycle; Interlocal 
Cooperation

Waiting on Lift Station Grant Response 
in early 2025

1. Lift Station Grant Response Due by 
3/1/25; 
2. Finalize Interlocal Lift Station Agmt 
by 4/1/25; 
3. Design Lift Station by 6/30/25; 
4. Lift Station Bidding & Project 

15%

EDU2024.2

Identify and pursue additional funding sources such as 
legislative appropirations, grants, and additional local option 
sales taxes to raise additional revenues to offset the local 
costs associated with the PK‐12 Construction and 
Consolidation Project.

1 CMO/CFO: CSP/MD/LZ
Heavily Tax Base.  Consider 
early reval or modification to 
80% solar exemption

1. Art.46 LOST Sales Tax ‐ Completed; 
2. Continuously review grant 
opportunities; 
3. Reassess grant/legislative funding 
opportunities prior to 2025 legislative 
session before 2/1/25.

Continuous 33%
Confirm 2025 Long Session Lobbying 
Priorities

EDU2024.3

Conduct an effective Local Option Sales Tax public 
information campaign highlighting the need to raise 
additional revenues to offset additional debt service 
associated with the PK‐12 School.

1 CMO: Asia Melton Completed Completed 100%

EDU2024.4

Work with School Officials to update and revise the current 
Funding Agreement between both parties updating its 
financial terms by replacing previously projected cost 
estimates with actual current financial data, and to further 
address how to resolve any current or future budgetary 
shortfalls and the longer term plans for the early college and 
other school facilities.

1 CMO/CFO: CSP/MD PK12 Completion Timing
Transfer Site walk through/Inventory 
est. 2/1/25;  Transfer est. 3/1/25; 
Review EC options by 6/1/25

Develop full understanding of future 
plans and contingencies for known 
capital priorities and facility 
requirements before adoption of FY26 
Budget/6/30/25

80%
Finalize/sign Lease & Revised Funding Agmt; 
Meet w/ WCS to discuss site transition 
planning

EDU2024.5
Work with Beaufort County Community College to increase 
programming available at the Washington County Center / 
Roper Annex Building.

2
1. CMO: KC/JS
2. WCS: CTE Dept/TBD 

JS/KC to set up initial collaboration 
meeting ASAP

Continuous; but review options by 
6/30/25

10%
Est. initial mtg to discuss collaboration by 
3/1/25 and develop CY2025 Timeline for 
Further Action

EDU2024.6

Work with BCCC, Washington County Schools, and Pocosin 
Innovative Charter School to identify and increase joint 
recreational and economic development programming 
opportunities (including reviving regular meetings of the 
Collaborative Business & Industry Innovation Council).

2
1. CMO: KC/CSP
2. WCS: CTE Dept/TBD
3. PIC: TBD

WCS/PIC Cooperation
KC/CSP to work with leadership of both 
parties to set up initial collaboration 
meeting ASAP

Continuous; Est. initial mtg to discuss 
collaboration by 6/30/25 to help 
develop CY2025 Timeline for Further 
Action

33%
overlaps with ED Goal 24.8; consider 
collapsing; also committee reinstated in 
CY24

EDU2024.7
Review teacher supplement use, effectiveness, and fundin
during FY25 budget process to increase or maintain regional 
competitiveness.

3 CMO/CFO: CSP/MD
Available $$$; overshadowed 
in 20204 by PK12 Capital 
Priorities

CMO to discuss with WCS during FY26 
Budget Discussions

Continuous; 0%
FY25 overshadowed by PK12; Revise to 
annual review

EDU2024.8
Engage lobbyist to pursue this objective during upcoming 
state legislative visits.

4 CMO: CSP Renew Lobbyist Contract for 2025/2026Continuous Biennial Legislative Cycle 80%
Work w/ Lobbyist to pursue priorities in early 
2025

Phase II School Construction

Action Items

Establish and maintain collaborative partnerships with Washington County Schools to proactively and more efficiently coordinate annual budgeting;
 plan for and complete long term capital projects; and pursue and accomplish other mutually beneficial initatives.
Collaborate with all educational partners to increase and more efficiently provide collaborative educational and other public service related opportunities.
Support the recruitment and retention of highly qualified and experienced public school teachers and staff to improve academic achievement and quality.
Advocate for appropriate allocation of school funding from federal and state sources.



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   8 
   
       DATE:     February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:        PK12 Funding Agreement (First Amendment) and Lease, Mr. Curtis 

Potter, CM/CA 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Attached are the revised  

1. First Amendment to the PK12 Funding Agreement; and 
2. Lease for the PK12 School 

 
Both include a copy of the revised Schedule D – Debt Service Amounts and Funding 
Sources reflecting the most up to date projections related to funding the debt service 
associated with the newly constructed school. 
 
 



























Loan 
Term 
Years

Lease 
Term 
Years

Fiscal 
Year 
Endin
g

Interes
t Rate

 Truist Loan 
Principle 

($19,796,000) 

 Truist Loan 
Interest 

 Total Debt Service 
 Potential 
Arbitrage 

 Amount of 
A40/A42 

Restricted Sales 
Tax Revenues 

Used Annually for 
Debt Service 

(Typically $690k+ 
total rec'd 
annually) 

 Lease Payments 
from WCS 

 Additional 
Unrestricted 
County Tax 
Revenues 

Committed to 
Debt Service 
(Equivalent to 
A46 1/4 cent 
Local Sales Tax 
Revenues) 

 Additional County 
Contributions Loaned 
to Project from its 

General Fund to Cover 
Projected Annual 
Debt Service 

Shortfalls ("ACC") 

 Post ACC Annual 
(Shortfalls) or Pre ARC 
Annual Surplus to use 

for ARC 

 Annual 
Reimbursements to 
County ("ARC")       

(to repay ACC from 
Total Funds Available 
to Pay Debt Service 

& ACC Reimb) 

 Post ACC & ARC Running Balance      
(Keep Positive) [Initial balance calc on 
FYE24 est fund balance not otherwise 
committed to PK12Project, before 
making 1st interest only debt srvc pmt 
that same FYE24 resulting in net neg 
balance at FYE24. 

 $                                              219,089.49 

1 2024 4.02 (431,057.90)$         (431,057.90)$          ‐$                         ‐$                      (431,057.90)$                 (211,968.41)$                                              

2 1 2025 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (795,799.20)$         (1,837,799.20)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        774,767.61$                   211,968.41$                   $0.00

3 2 2026 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (753,910.80)$         (1,795,910.80)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        520,910.80$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

4 3 2027 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (712,022.40)$         (1,754,022.40)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        479,022.40$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

5 4 2028 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (670,134.00)$         (1,712,134.00)$        $TBD to be 
added to ACC  575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        437,134.00$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

6 5 2029 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (628,245.60)$         (1,670,245.60)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        395,245.60$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

7 6 2030 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (586,357.20)$         (1,628,357.20)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        353,357.20$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

8 7 2031 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (544,468.80)$         (1,586,468.80)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        311,468.80$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

9 8 2032 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (502,580.40)$         (1,544,580.40)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        269,580.40$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

10 9 2033 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (460,692.00)$         (1,502,692.00)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        227,692.00$                   0.00$                               $0.00

11 10 2034 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (418,803.60)$         (1,460,803.60)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        185,803.60$                   0.00$                               $0.00

12 11 2035 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (376,915.20)$         (1,418,915.20)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        143,915.20$                   0.00$                               $0.00

13 12 2036 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (335,026.80)$         (1,377,026.80)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        102,026.80$                   0.00$                               $0.00

14 13 2037 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (293,138.40)$         (1,335,138.40)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        60,138.40$                     0.00$                               $0.00

15 14 2038 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (251,250.00)$         (1,293,250.00)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        18,250.00$                     0.00$                               $0.00

16 15 2039 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (209,361.60)$         (1,251,361.60)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        23,638.40$                     23,638.40$                   $0.00

17 16 2040 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (167,473.20)$         (1,209,473.20)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        65,526.80$                     65,526.80$                   $0.00

18 17 2041 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (125,584.80)$         (1,167,584.80)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        107,415.20$                   107,415.20$                $0.00

19 18 2042 4.02 (1,041,000)$       (83,696.40)$           (1,124,696.40)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        150,303.60$                   150,303.60$                $0.00

20 19 2043 4.02 (1,041,000)$       (41,808.00)$           (1,082,808.00)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        192,192.00$                   192,192.00$                $0.00

20 2044 4.02 ‐$                          575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        1,275,000.00$               1,275,000.00$             $0.00

21 2045 4.02 ‐$                          575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        1,275,000.00$               1,275,000.00$             $0.00

22 2046 4.02 ‐$                          490,236.81$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        1,190,236.81$               1,190,236.81$             $0.00

(19,796,000)$     (8,388,326.30)$     (28,184,326.30)$    12,565,236.81$     8,800,000.00$    6,600,000.00$     4,279,312.81$              4,060,223.32$               4,279,312.81$             n/a

 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE TO PAY DEBT SERVICE & 
ACC REIMBURSEMENTS 

 aka (Lease Exhibit "C")Schedule D ‐ Debt service amounts and funding sources (Revised via 12/31/24 First Funding Agreement Amendment) 

 Totals above should be recalculated periodically to reflect actual ACC/ACR activty, but ACC and ARC Totals should remain 
equal to show 100% equitable reimbursement to County for all ACCs from ACRs 















































Loan 
Term 
Years

Lease 
Term 
Years

Fiscal 
Year 
Endin
g

Interes
t Rate

 Truist Loan 
Principle 

($19,796,000) 

 Truist Loan 
Interest 

 Total Debt Service 
 Potential 
Arbitrage 

 Amount of 
A40/A42 

Restricted Sales 
Tax Revenues 

Used Annually for 
Debt Service 

(Typically $690k+ 
total rec'd 
annually) 

 Lease Payments 
from WCS 

 Additional 
Unrestricted 
County Tax 
Revenues 

Committed to 
Debt Service 
(Equivalent to 
A46 1/4 cent 
Local Sales Tax 
Revenues) 

 Additional County 
Contributions Loaned 
to Project from its 

General Fund to Cover 
Projected Annual 
Debt Service 

Shortfalls ("ACC") 

 Post ACC Annual 
(Shortfalls) or Pre ARC 
Annual Surplus to use 

for ARC 

 Annual 
Reimbursements to 
County ("ARC")       

(to repay ACC from 
Total Funds Available 
to Pay Debt Service 

& ACC Reimb) 

 Post ACC & ARC Running Balance      
(Keep Positive) [Initial balance calc on 
FYE24 est fund balance not otherwise 
committed to PK12Project, before 
making 1st interest only debt srvc pmt 
that same FYE24 resulting in net neg 
balance at FYE24. 

 $                                              219,089.49 

1 2024 4.02 (431,057.90)$         (431,057.90)$          ‐$                         ‐$                      (431,057.90)$                 (211,968.41)$                                              

2 1 2025 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (795,799.20)$         (1,837,799.20)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        774,767.61$                   211,968.41$                   $0.00

3 2 2026 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (753,910.80)$         (1,795,910.80)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        520,910.80$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

4 3 2027 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (712,022.40)$         (1,754,022.40)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        479,022.40$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

5 4 2028 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (670,134.00)$         (1,712,134.00)$        $TBD to be 
added to ACC  575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        437,134.00$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

6 5 2029 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (628,245.60)$         (1,670,245.60)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        395,245.60$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

7 6 2030 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (586,357.20)$         (1,628,357.20)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        353,357.20$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

8 7 2031 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (544,468.80)$         (1,586,468.80)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        311,468.80$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

9 8 2032 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (502,580.40)$         (1,544,580.40)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        269,580.40$                   ‐$                                 $0.00

10 9 2033 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (460,692.00)$         (1,502,692.00)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        227,692.00$                   0.00$                               $0.00

11 10 2034 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (418,803.60)$         (1,460,803.60)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        185,803.60$                   0.00$                               $0.00

12 11 2035 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (376,915.20)$         (1,418,915.20)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        143,915.20$                   0.00$                               $0.00

13 12 2036 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (335,026.80)$         (1,377,026.80)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        102,026.80$                   0.00$                               $0.00

14 13 2037 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (293,138.40)$         (1,335,138.40)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        60,138.40$                     0.00$                               $0.00

15 14 2038 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (251,250.00)$         (1,293,250.00)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        18,250.00$                     0.00$                               $0.00

16 15 2039 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (209,361.60)$         (1,251,361.60)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        23,638.40$                     23,638.40$                   $0.00

17 16 2040 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (167,473.20)$         (1,209,473.20)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        65,526.80$                     65,526.80$                   $0.00

18 17 2041 4.02 (1,042,000)$       (125,584.80)$         (1,167,584.80)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        107,415.20$                   107,415.20$                $0.00

19 18 2042 4.02 (1,041,000)$       (83,696.40)$           (1,124,696.40)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        150,303.60$                   150,303.60$                $0.00

20 19 2043 4.02 (1,041,000)$       (41,808.00)$           (1,082,808.00)$       575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        192,192.00$                   192,192.00$                $0.00

20 2044 4.02 ‐$                          575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        1,275,000.00$               1,275,000.00$             $0.00

21 2045 4.02 ‐$                          575,000.00$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        1,275,000.00$               1,275,000.00$             $0.00

22 2046 4.02 ‐$                          490,236.81$          400,000.00$       300,000.00$        1,190,236.81$               1,190,236.81$             $0.00

(19,796,000)$     (8,388,326.30)$     (28,184,326.30)$    12,565,236.81$     8,800,000.00$    6,600,000.00$     4,279,312.81$              4,060,223.32$               4,279,312.81$             n/a

 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE TO PAY DEBT SERVICE & 
ACC REIMBURSEMENTS 

 aka (Lease Exhibit "C")Schedule D ‐ Debt service amounts and funding sources (Revised via 12/31/24 First Funding Agreement Amendment) 

 Totals above should be recalculated periodically to reflect actual ACC/ACR activty, but ACC and ARC Totals should remain 
equal to show 100% equitable reimbursement to County for all ACCs from ACRs 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  9 
 
       DATE:     February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL  
 
At the last Board of Commissioners meeting, the Board discussed Commissioners Spruill 
& Walker to be on the newly formed Economic Development Advisory Council, but no 
action was taken. 
 
The Board needs to make the appropriate appointments to this Council. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  10 
 
       DATE:  February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget transfers and budget 
amendments for Board’s approval/disapproval. 
 
(See attached.) 
 
 
 

















































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   11 
 
       DATE:     February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 Department Head Reports from January 2025 (see attached) 
 Statistic Reports (see attached) 

 



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
February 3, 2025 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING: 

The EMS Division currently has (3) Full-Time Paramedic positions available.  The Transport 
Division has one Full-Time EMT positions available, one Full-Time EMT on medical leave.  We 
are also accepting applications for part-time positions for all levels (EMT, A-EMT, and 
Paramedic).  Sidney Andrews has completed her Paramedic training and has moved into a 
Paramedic position. We are anticipating Laquesta Bond to complete her Paramedic training in 
March.  

SAFETY: 

We continue to participate in the Injury Prevention System program through the NCACC 
monthly with safety sheets.  

SYSTEM BUSINESS: 

RACECARS Trial is bringing several more AED’s into our community soon and we continue to 
teach the public as the system allows.  

The winter weather events recently brought us some beautiful snow.  However, it was also a 
reminder of the difficulties we face in the winter due to keeping our vehicles outside.   

 

  

Thank you for your continued support of Washington-Tyrrell County EMS. 



 

Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
  
Recreation is good . We have 20 basketball teams, and we are getting set for the EAC 
tournament on March 8-9th in Plymouth, if we can get the facilities.   We are getting ready for 
beginner and senior pickleball, and karate in February. 
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
The Board of Elections office has been a little quieter. I have been able to catch up with my 
filing paperwork. All and all, business as usual! 

 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
  
Staffing: 

Director Judi Bugniazet is retiring at the end of January; her replacement Nathan King has been 
training under her supervision to begin working as new Director 02/01/25. 

Programs: 

• We have begun planning for our SRP and have booked several acts thus far; we will post 
a finalized schedule of events close to the start of summer. 

• Our usual Wednesday programs are still happening; F2F Storytime at 10:30 AM, WIP 
(Works in Progress) at NOON, Virtual Storytime at NOON. 

• The Library is partnering with Washington County 4-H to host several “self-love” 
programs in February; see our Facebook page or flyer in lobby for dates and registration 
information. 

Other Library Happenings:  

• I am interviewing for a job at our sister library branch in Edenton and may be transferring 
over to act as their County Librarian; interview will be soon. 

• We are once again receiving donations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
   
 

 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services – sending tax 
information, verifying balances due, completing tax certifications, adding attorney 
fees and/or suit cost.  

2. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling value adjustments, 
refunds, releases, address corrections and general questions regarding motor 
vehicles. We had several requests that appealed the value, several where the tag 
had been turned in and several that had been charged taxes for being in a town, but 
they were not in a town.   

3. Continue to verify PINs for Deed filings, process Tax Certifications and assign 
addresses in GIS – we had several address requests. We have a variation of these 
daily.  

4. I had several maps to verify the PIN and stamp off on as Review Officer.  
5. Continue to work with the landfill. They call us for verification of ownership 

of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and that person 



 

is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their debris or 
trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the address 
they have given.  

6. The Statistical report was submitted. 
7. Sent mapping updates to Joe with Atlas.  
8. Verified ownership on a property with Tammie at DSS.  
9. Verified ownership info with Dale from the Beacon.  
10. I worked from home several days to complete the calculation of journal entries 

needed by the Finance office.  
11. The office remains busy with tax payments, releases, appeal questions, 

exemption questions, questions that always arise after the tax bills are received. 
12. Started receiving the Business Personal Property forms and Abstract – 

Individual Personal Property forms.  Rosa is very busy processing these and 
Jerrian is assisting her. 

13. Jerrian and Rosa will be viewing a webinar on Managing Public Records for 
Government Employees this month. 

14. 2024 tax bills with balances due are now considered delinquent.  Interest was 
added to them on January 7th.  Usually, January 5th is the last day to pay, and 
interest is added on the 6th but because the 5th was during the weekend, the last 
day to pay was 6th.  

15. The staff and I worked to complete our courses for Neogov.   
16. Hollie continues to work on deed transfers and estate transfers.  
17. Christal continues to work with the queues with NCVTS.  
18. I am working on the completion of the TR1 & TR2 reports.  I am working on 

the completion of the values for the fire districts for the State Fire Marshall.   
 

Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 

 
Permits issued    24 
Plan/App Reviews     8 
Inspections    40      
Floodplain Review                               5 
Tyrrell County contract    3 days (10, 17, 24) 

Jan 6, Public Hearing – Commissioners – Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance 
Snow Days:  January 22, 23 
Bereavement (Mother-in-Law)  - thank you for working with me through this process 
Met with Solar groups – Macadamia Solar 
                                        Sandbar Solar 
 
Met with EMTOC design and Admin team 
Holidays  Jan 1 and Jan 20 
Fire Watch continues at  Washington Regional Medical Center 
 
 



 

Planning Board :  set Public Hearing for text amendment to Corridor Commercial 
   Set Public Hearing for Zoning Change from RA to CC (Haraguchi) 

Work on priorities for zoning amendments with economic development in 
mind 

 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  

 

Jan.6th -Swamp Hogs Meeting 

Jan 8th- DH Meeting 

Jan. 9th- DEMO, Civic Plus 

Jan. 9th- EM EOC Bldg. Review 

Jan. 10th- MTW JRA/IPPW Meeting 

Jan. 15th- Visit Carolina Yachts to deliver electronics and discuss progress 

Jan. 16th- Budget Workshop Mtg. 

Jan.17th- Deliver 24’ trailer to Advantage RV for upfitting 

Jan. 20th-23rd Winter Storm monitoring 

CBCG Grant Progress/Project Completion as of 1/27/2025- Boat/Motor/Trailer-70%,  

Command Trailer/Generator-25% 

 

Upcoming 

1/27/25- Fire Chief’s Meeting 

2/3/25- Swamp Hogs Meeting 

2/4/25- NEOGOV Meeting with Rep. & Update to System 

2/5/25- DH Meeting 

February Safety Training-NEOGOV 

2/11/25- County Safety Committee Meeting/Soil & Water Office 

 



 

Attached is overall NEOGOV Training Report Countywide 

 
 

 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 

1. Completed post surveys for 3 contracts and created RFP to be signed. 
2. Assisted in Beaver Control in multiple areas around Washington County. 
3. Spoke with multiple cooperators about plans and interest in cover crop and 

residue tillage management. 
4. Presented areas of access for S.t.r.a.p. project to bidders. 8.6 Miles of waterways 

around Washington County to be Snagged and Cleared of Vegetative Debris. 
February 3, 2025 County Commissioners will award the winner of the contract. 

5. Safety training on Neo-Gov Software Completed. 
6. Inspected cover crop establishment for contracts in 2025. 
7. Started brainstorming with staff about strategic plan for next 5 years. 
8. Measured most of the waterways included in the 1 cent drainage tax. (103 Miles) 
9. Created inventory list of equipment in digital format. 
10. Created Presentation for Drainage Advisory Meeting January 31,2025 at 9AM. 



 

11. Traveled to Tyrell County for a meeting with NRCS and a new and upcoming 
producer of Washington County.  

12. Achieved signatures on RFPs from Tyrell County Tech. 
13. Soil and Water Department’s budget preparation. 
14. Converted files on to QGIS for contour maps of Washington County. 
15. Completed LGC Report for 2024. 
16. Organized areas of interest on maps for Beaver Control on Eddie-Smith Canal, 

Kendricks Creek, Moccasin Canal, and Beaver Dam Branch. 

 
 
Landfill 
Hakeim Blakeney 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Harley Spruill 
 
Detention: 

 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
Mediacom: Currently, Mediacom is drawing out a plan to replace cable in Courthouse using the 
stairwell where they will be able to branch off at each floor. 
 
Tax Office Software Migration: Timeline has been developed. 
 
FY24 911 Grant: Worked on issues with invoices from Motorola – requested to have corrections 
made. Invoices received and turned into Finance on 01/24/25. We are now in the process of 
finalizing the 911 2024 Grant requirements. This includes the final project report and supporting 
documentation of payment.  
 
--Work on entering information on spreadsheet for County computer list. 
--Multiple phone calls to USGlobe & Specialty concerning repairs on Register of Deeds hp  
   printer. 
--Research KVM switch replacement for Sheriff, order and install. 



 

--Issue with Edmunds update – forward email from Edmunds to Tina. 
--Troubleshoot issue with soundbar on Michele’s computer. 
--Multiple emails/phone calls to Motorola to have corrections made on invoices for 2024 911  
   Grant. After corrected invoices received – review and turn into Finance. 
--Troubleshoot issue with TaxClerk1 email and correct. 
--Troubleshoot issue with copier at Senior Center and correct. 
--Troubleshoot issue with LandfillManager email – put in ticket request for SSG. 
--Troubleshoot issue with postage machine error. 
--Work with SSG on issue with 911 Body Cam NAS. 
--Troubleshoot issue with IT computer and correct. 
--Troubleshoot issue with Tax office computer. No profile displayed. 
--Troubleshoot issue with Michele’s computer. No sound/monitor blank. Cords pulled too  
   tight. 
--Research issue from NCARNG Cybersecurity Response Team – issue was in City of  
   Washington, not Washington County. 
--Research invoice received from Motorola – no name or department on order – was placed  
   by Archie Quintana – give to Finance. 
--Complete markup corrections on 911 Revenue Expenditure Report. Email to 911 Board and 
   cc Missy. Train Harley. 
--Get quote for two HDs that are failing on 911 NAS. Place order. 
--Contact Bill with Mobile Communications concerning Creswell FD only hearing static on  
   calls. He will call Lance for more information. 
--Give Harley number for Southern Software for issue with text msgs – explain to her how to  
   handle. 
--Troubleshoot issue with SVR01. 
--Discuss with Michele issue with thumb drive – explain to her how to call copier tech  
   support to have fixed. 
--Attend EMTOC meeting to review design and construction. 
--Layout 911 server room on paper to determine space needed. Review with Jason, Curtis  
   and Harley. 
--Troubleshoot issue with EM tablet. 
--Setup WaterTemp account to scan for Water Dept. 
--Change password for Missy to access Mike Gray’s email. 
--Document list of equipment in 911 server room and email to Jason and Curtis. 
--Troubleshoot issue with cordless phone at Recreation – battery and back cover missing –  
   will have to order another. Contact VC3 to get quote. 
--Troubleshoot issue with Microsoft license at Recreation and multiple other issues. 
--Correct Edmunds issue at Water Plant. 
--Work on issue with Senior Center vpn. Pending SSG to check. 
--Troubleshoot issue with error when accessing DCI for Michele. Train Harley how to  
   correct. 
--Troubleshoot issue with connection to Property Record Cards – possible pop up blocker. 



 

--Discussion with 911 Board about new 911 Ortho Images – GIS is supposed to install –  
   discuss with Sherri. 
--Update Edmunds files on PCs outside network. 
--Review EMAG with Harley and what needs to be done to renew with other cell carriers. 
--Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
--Attend County Manager group meetings. 
--Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
--Verify CopyPro and VC3 invoices for Finance. 
--Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 
 
 
Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 



 

Surplus 
Debbie Knieper 
 

 
 
Airport 
Mary Moscato 
 
Project Update:  
• Airfield Lighting Improvement Project 
 Not much has changed in the status of this project. We’re still pending calibration and an FAA 

flight check on the PAPI (Precision Approach Path Indicators) lights. I am currently reviewing 
two (2) pay requests from the contractor and hope to have them approved by the end of the 
month. 

• RPZ Obstruction Removal 
 Working with AVCON on contacting the property owners that were identified as having trees 

that need to be removed as part of this project. 
 The Request for Bids was issued on January 7th. A Pre-Bid meeting is scheduled for January 

29th with Bid Opening scheduled for February 11th.  
• AWOS  
 Since the site location of the AWOS was changed from what was originally approved on the 

Airport Layout Plan (ALP) a “pen and ink” update is required.  Also, an environmental findings 
study must be approved and completed prior to a grant award for design services.  

• Terminal Parking Lot Rehabilitation 
 This project is being considered to use available BIL AIG grant funds as well as expiring NPE 

funds.  
 
Other Activities: 
• A solenoid on the Jet A fuel pump needs to be replaced. The part has been ordered; however, until 

the repair has been completed Jet A fuel is not available. A NOTAM has been issued.  
• Attended the Southern Albemarle Association meeting in Fairfield.  



 

• Due to icy conditions on the runway (particularly the South end) during the recent snow event the 
runway was closed for several days. A NOTAM was issued. 

 
Revenue Update (as of 01/28/25): 
• January Fuel Sales: $1,833.61 
• Total fuel sales for FY25: $40,822.47 (54.43% Realized) 
• Hangar Leases:  $15,600 (100%) 
 
 
Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Safety 

• No issues 

Budget Review 

• Budget is in line 

Project Updates 

• Animal Shelter floor must be repainted per State inspector 
• The Courthouse roof is scheduled to be replaced starting 3-17-25 
• Completed 50 work orders 
• Installed some new receptacles at the Landfill 
• Put up new No Smoking signs on most buildings 
• Cleaned and painted the metal walls in the Jail (per Inspection report) 
• 90% of the lights have been converted at the Water Plant in Roper 

New Business 

• We are beginning to use a new work order system 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 

 
 



 

  

 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 



 

 

 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                        

Current Year Tax 1,034,603.36$    472,813.97$       1,716,260.60$  359,027.43$   252,118.91$   2,106,482.61$    5,941,306.88$                     

Current Yr Discount -$                      (2,288.44)$          (17,589.09)$       -$                  -$                  -$                       (19,877.53)$                          

Current Year Penalty -$                      84.94$                 3,143.33$          758.09$           282.21$           7,393.01$            11,661.58$                           

Current Year Interest -$                      -$                      1.85$                   345.61$           18.24$             -$                       365.70$                                 Oct Int is on Deferred Taxes made Due 

Watershed Tax Current Yr 900.00$               1,339.03$            20,694.17$        4,317.62$       2,834.21$       24,967.22$          55,052.25$                           

Watershed Discount -$                      (25.44)$                (205.23)$             -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                                        

Watershed Penalty -$                      1.05$                    37.18$                7.86$                3.20$                88.08$                  137.37$                                 

Watershed Interest -$                      -$                      -$                     3.38$                -$                  -$                       3.38$                                      Oct Int is on Deferred Taxes made Due 

Prior Year Tax 113,986.52$       43,681.96$         24,819.23$        16,739.69$     17,640.25$     14,073.23$          230,940.88$                         

Prior Year Penalty 533.81$               46.79$                 88.76$                56.61$             118,382.20$   651.67$                119,759.84$                         

Prior Year Interest 107,944.06$       164,514.32$       6,368.56$          3,241.20$       47,996.24$     3,080.20$            333,144.58$                         

Prior Year Watershed 427.68$               172.72$               237.18$              185.25$           121.76$           99.19$                  1,243.78$                              

Prior Year WS Penalty 5.90$                    0.28$                    0.91$                   0.70$                0.16$                1.99$                    9.94$                                      

Prior Year WS Interest 483.98$               346.23$               337.46$              331.52$           181.50$           112.78$                1,793.47$                              

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                                        

Prepayments -$                      83.08$                 921.61$              2,654.05$       4,626.74$       2,101.07$            10,386.55$                           

TOTAL 1,258,885.31$   680,770.49$      1,755,116.52$  387,669.01$  444,205.62$  2,159,051.05$   -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  6,685,928.67$                     

Initiated 0 0 0 0 -                    0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                                        

Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0 0 0 -                    0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                                        

*

 $         94,977.77 91,165.98$         85,475.57$        89,228.29$     70,231.90$     88,471.75$          424,573.49$                         

 -$                                        

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                                        

Collected All Years 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      79,282.71$     70,585.68$     204,641.79$       757,779.70$                         

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

TOTAL 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      79,282.71$     70,585.68$     204,641.79$       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  757,779.70$                         

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

Collected Current Yr 291.70$               259.16$              210.84$           265.30$           2,915.79$            -$                  3,942.79$                              

TOTAL 291.70$               -$                      259.16$              210.84$           265.30$           2,915.79$            -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  3,942.79$                              

Collected Current Yr 6,167.86$            12,381.04$         36,559.47$        10,230.76$     9,486.77$       64,140.63$          0 138,966.53$                         

Creswell Levy 349.86$               1,674.35$            24,831.41$        4,732.93$       741.70$           40,327.43$          72,657.68$                           

1,375,205.19$   814,269.87$      2,262,700.95$  571,354.54$  595,516.97$  2,559,548.44$   -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  8,178,595.96$                     

Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC We received a payment per the payment plan 11/7/24. I remain in touch regarding additional payments and the proposed sale. 

VL Group A, LLC We received payment in full for the 2023 taxes. No delinquencies, only the 2024 taxes are due. 

Plymouth Solar, LLC No payments rec'd on the 2023 taxes. Delinquent balance due $27,688.26 (there was an adjustment on the 2023 taxes due to an assessment error)

I am in contact with the same person who is handling the Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC payment plan for a status on the payments for VL Group, LLC and Plymouth Solar, LLC.  

We received a payment for VL Group A, LLC to pay the 2023 taxes. 

Tax and Tag Collections

Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX

FY24-25

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Eddie Smith Drainage

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in 

million gallons)
8.08 8.93 7 6.896 7.547 6.94 7.77 6.19 6.16 8.23 2.755 8.28 86

Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in 

million gallons)
9.51 6.91 6.97 7 6.85 7.56 30

Base Charges 71,439$      71,283$      71,361$      71,127$    71,217$   70,934$   427,361$        

Consumption Charges 81,120$      46,350$      47,445$      47,580$    45,855$   54,570$   322,920$        

Reconnecton Charges 1,890$        2,240$        2,170$        2,135$      1,470$      1,680$      11,585$          

 Number of Abatements 18 9 4 9 4 5 49                    

  Dollar Amount of 

Abatements 
2,408.50$  3,608$        413$           1,493$      186$         1,076$     9,183.50$      

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

16.4 15.9 14.14 13.16 12 71.900

Number of Customers 2682 2676 2679 2670 2673 2665 16,045

New taps 2 2 1 0 1 1 2

Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$     4,844.65$     4,844.65$     4,844.65$   $4,844.65 $4,844.65 29,067.90$             

0

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in million gallons)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

WC Dispatched 161 131 148 151 115 148

WC Transported 124 95 120 113 87 112 651

WC Refusals 37 36 28 34 30 36 201

Transport Washington

Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 0 1 0 0 2

SNF to Doctors 112 94 132 199 149 177 863

Hospital Discharges 13 9 19 13 6 15 75

EMS Back Up 4 5 6 6 2 8 31

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

TC Dispatched 51 66 51 69 51 39 327

TC Transported 36 41 39 52 35 30 233

TC Refusals 15 25 12 15 16 9 92

Mutual Aid Hyde

HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Transported 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)

FY24-25

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)



43%

13%

22%

16%

6%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 62.41 42.11 90.43 67.89 53.79 47.32 363.95

Inert Debris 76.5 32.1 27.58 43.95 6.19 0.27 186.59

Scrap Metal 0.57 1.34 0.49 15.85 1.51 0.69 20.45

C&D 32.24 44.74 47.06 149.03 34.31 35.45 342.83

Tires 11.76 4.92 5.37 4.57 0.77 3.81 31.20

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 24-25

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $4,702.70 3,080.00$      1,960.40$   2,043.50$   1,240.60$   5,243.50$   5,688.80$   $23,959.50

Zoning 100.00$    200.00$       25.00$         50.00$         25.00$         100.00$       25.00$         $525.00

Reinspect 325.00$    100.00$       475.00$       725.00$       75.00$         -$             375.00$       $2,075.00

SWUF $175.00 145.84$       87.50$         -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             $408.34
HO Recovery 

Fee $10.00 -$             -$             10.00$         10.00$         10.00$         10.00$         -$             -$             -$            $50.00

Total $5,312.70 $3,525.84 $2,547.90 $2,828.50 $1,350.60 $5,353.50 $6,098.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $27,017.84

PLANNING AND ZONING

FY24-25

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY24 -25) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

89%

2%
8% 1%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning

Reinspect SWUF

HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
YTD Total

Unduplicated Attendees 79 58 78 78 73 69 435
Total Guest Check-Ins 29 28 23 22 7 4 113
New Member Forms Submitted 8 1 5 2 1 2 19
Center-Sponsored Events 450 396 375 428 274 315 2238
Special Events 149 113 144 207 144 208 965
Caregiver's Support Groups 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Exercise Room 64 57 62 59 50 54 346
Fitness Workout (ON HOLD) HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 0
Yoga 8 5 4 4 5 5 31
Chair Exercise 51 39 48 39 12 21 210
Line Dance 8 HOLD 24 18 9 4 63
Crafts With Sandra Lee 13 14 18 16 5 6 72
Drop-in Activities 16 25 34 27 56 20 178
Pickle Ball (ON HOLD) HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 0
Roper Classes 14 HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 14
Creswell Classes 10 HOLD HOLD HOLD HOLD 10

YTD Total
1003 987 989 1131 884 783 0 0 0 0 0 0 5777

Congregate Meals Served 244 237 279 294 231 208 1493
Home-Delivered Meals Served 759 750 710 837 653 575 4284

YTD Total
748.00$  2,754.58$  486.50$   100.00$  32.00$     55.00$    -$           -$           -$            -$            -$        -$     4,176.08$   

Congregate Donations to AC $69.00 $27.24 $72.50 168.74$       
MOW Donations to AC $550.00 $308.00 $205.00 1,063.00$   
Activity Fees to County GF 80.00$     55.00$         50.00$      80.00$     7.00$        30.00$    302.00$       
Senior Collected Donations 49.00$     2,364.34$  159.00$    20.00$     25.00$     25.00$    2,642.34$   

SENIOR CENTER
FY24-25



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Total (by 

Gender)

Total 

Incacerations

50 52 67 56 67 51 53 0 0 0 0 0 396 396
Male 34 34 48 30 41 30 33 250

Female 8 8 8 10 11 8 8 61

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 10 10 15 15 13 11 82 82

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY24-25

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

311

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP               Male

99%

0%1%0%0%0%0%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY24-25)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1105 998 1022 929 915 854 0 0 0 0 5823

Law Enforcement 853 755 776 676 728 679 4467
Animal Control 73 89 77 79 47 33 398

EMS 179 154 169 174 140 142 958

Reported Incidents 31 10 41

Total Arrests 0 0 0 0 0 0

Misdemeanor Arrests 7 2 6 0 15

Felony Arrests 10 0 7 1 18

Total Papers Served 0 0 51 21 48 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 140

Criminal Papers Served 17 4 7 4 32

Civil Papers Served 34 17 41 16 108

Total Papers Outstanding 0 0 36 39 31 29 0 0 0 0 0  135

Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 19 6 8 40
Civil Papers Outstanding 29 20 25 21 95

Gun Permits Issued  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0

Conceals Pending  N/A 10 9 19

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 0

SHERIFF

FY24-25

7%

16%

Dispatched Calls (FY24-25)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS



77%

EMS

80

100

120
108

95

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY24 -25)



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plymouth Police Department 0

Public Works 0
EMS Calls in the Town of Plymouth 0

Plymouth Fire Department

SHERRIFF

FY24-25



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   12 
   
       DATE:     February 3, 2025 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 

 



 

                        
January 6, 2025 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on 
Monday, January 6, 2025, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John 
C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present were County Manager/ 
County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason Squires, Clerk to the 
Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 
 Chair Phelps called the meeting to order. Commissioner Keyes gave the 
invocation.  Chair Phelps led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:   None. 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve tonight’s Agenda.  
Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA: 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, to 
be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Regular Session Minutes:  December 5, 2024 & Special Called Meeting Minutes December 

5, 2024 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Account 
c) FPIC Audit Response Letter for Full Board Signature 
d) Economic & Strategic Development Position 
e) Confirmation Washington County CFPT Continuing as a Single County Team  
f)    Revised RAP LEPC EOP 

 
 Commissioner Spruill asked to remove item f) from the Consent Agenda. and pass the consent 
agenda  TAJ/AK 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda with 
the change noted.  Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC FORUM:  None.  
 
EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR: Chair Phelps read the following:  
 
The Employee of the Year is chosen from the Employee of the Quarter recipients. This 

year we had nominations in March, June & September. 
 

This year’s Employee of the Year was the recipient in March.  Her nomination read as 
follows 

“This employee goes above and beyond to help keep her Department on top of their 
required workload.  She coordinates with other counties to cover work when we are required to 
assist other counties.  She helps out wherever she is needed and keeps morale high. She is also 
shared with another department and volunteers whenever her services are needed. She is a 
wonderful employee and is an asset to the community.” 

 



 

This is a long-standing employee (of almost 20 years) who actually started out as an 
Income Maintenance Caseworker for DSS in November of 2004.  In February 2015, she was 
hired as the county’s Code Enforcement Officer, the position that she holds today.  

 
 Please join me in congratulating Ms. Connie Barnes as the 2024 Employee of the Year! 

 
            DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION UPDATE—SENIOR CENTER:  Ms. Renee’ 

Collier, Senior Center Director gave the following presentation. 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 The Commissioners thanked Ms. Collier for what she does for the County. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING:  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION FOR 
FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION ORDINANCE:  Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Safety/ 
Inspections Director spoke to the Board.  

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the public hearing. 

Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion passed unanimously. 



 

 Mr. Pittman noted that the following information was provided to the Board which 
included a marked up copy of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance so they could see 
what changes were made. 
 

On Thursday, December 19, 2024, the Washington County Planning Board passed 
a motion to recommend the adoption of a revised Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, NC 
Coastal model, which includes new language and definitions due to the inclusion of Coastal 
Flood Hazard Areas (VE and Coastal A zones). It is recommended that the Commissioners 
act on this matter at this January 6, 2025 meeting. 

 
A draft of the ordinance was previously reviewed by the Planning Board at their 

November 21, 2024 meeting and a Public Hearing was set for December 19, 2024. The 
hearing was advertised, along with a notice that if the Planning Board recommended 
approval of the ordinance at this hearing, a separate hearing would be conducted by the 
Board of Commissioners at their January 6, 2025 meeting. This advertisement was 
confirmed with the Roanoke Beacon on December 4, and December 11, 2024. 

 
This ordinance must be adopted prior to January 15, 2025 so the adopted document 

with signatures can be sent to the NCDPS and FEMA no later than January 17, 2025 in 
order for any flood insurance policies to be renewed or written in the future in Washington 
County. 
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to close the public hearing. 
Commissioner Johnson seconded; motion passed unanimously. 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Flood Damage Prevention 
Ordinance with its changes.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

UPDATED DRAFT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP):  Mr. Potter, CM/CA 
spoke to the Board. He distributed a draft CIP. (See below). Mr. Potter noted that this will be 
discussed more in the budget workshop. He will bring it up at the Wednesday Dept. Head Mtg. 
so there may be a few more additional items brought to the workshop. 

 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN PROGRESS UPDATE:  Mr. Jason Squires, ACM, discussed this 
with the Board since Mr. Kelly Chesson, SPC is in Bertie this evening.  

 
Background:  
Staff will present an update on the Safe Healthy Communities and Organizational 

Excellence components of the 2024 Strategic Plan as shown in the attached action item tracking 
pages.  

An update on the Economic Development and Strong Educational Opportunities will be 
provided during the upcoming FY26 Budget Workshops.  

Staff seeks BOCC input on:  
1. Any desired changes to the action item tracking page format  
2. Any desired changes to specific goals and/or action items  
 
Anticipated feedback and revision timeline:  
1. 1/6/25: Presentation of ½ action item tracking pages and discussion  
2. 1/15/25: Tentatively planned FY26 Budget Workshop Mtg & Presentation of 

remaining action item tracking pages and discussion  



 

3. 2/3/25: Regular BOCC Mtg: Consideration/approval of specific revisions to 
goals/action items  

 
Mr. Squires went over the following: 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
Commissioner Johnson said one thing she did not see listed is Tabletop Exercises. 

Discussion ensued. 
 
Commissioner Spruill said he feels the Volunteer Fire Departments (VFDs) need to be 

involved. 
 
Commissioner Spruill said he feels the employee evaluation process is needed.  

Commissioner Walker said he feels the current format works.   
 
Commissioner Walker also agreed with Commissioner Johnson about needing training on 

emergencies.  
 
Commissioner Keyes said it is good for a few counties to work together such as with the 

RAP. 
 



 

DISCUSSION ON ITEM f) ROANOKE, ALBEMARLE, PAMLICO (RAP) 
REGIONAL EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN (EOP): 

 
Commissioner Spruill asked why our airport was left out.  Mr. Lance Swindell, EM 

Coordinator, said when they pulled from the original documents, the Dare Co. Airport was in 
those documents. He said our airport information can be added. 

 
Commissioner Spruill asked if this Plan is just for our county.  Mr. Swindell said each 

county will be approving their own. Amendments can be added to each county’s version. 
 
Discussion ensued also about declaring a State of Emergency. 

 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to adopt the Revised RAP LEPC EOP.  
Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
PK12 UPDATE:  Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA spoke to the Board on this subject. 

 
 The School Board is currently reviewing proposed revisions to the original Funding and 

Lease Agreements. 
  
Attached is an updated anticipated Debt Service Schedule which also shows additional 

county contributions covering an initial cash flow shortage to cover the debt service until repaid 
in later years by the sources shown in the attachment.  

 

 
An Owner Architect Contractor meeting is set for 1/7/25 ahead of the anticipated opening 

day of 1/9/25 for students to enter the building.  
Various parties are beginning to express increased interest in obtaining ownership or 

continued use of various school properties which are expected to be vacated by WCS shortly.  
 



 

Management strongly recommends deferring any such consideration until after:  
1. The PK12 facility is finished and fully populated by all intended students; and  
2. Any pending revisions to the Funding Agreement and/or Lease are finalized and 

approved by both Boards.  
 
Once these items occur (expected by mid-January) Management anticipates bringing a 

recommended strategy for receiving, reviewing, and handling all such requests from any such 
interested parties to the next regular Board meeting. 

 
  BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, spoke to the 
Board about the following requests. 
 
 COMMISSIONERS SEATS ON BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   The Clerk to the 
Board has a list of the Boards & Committees that Commissioners currently serve on. If you 
would like to make any changes for 2025, now is the time.  These can be discussed tonight or 
can be put back on the agenda for February.   
 

 
 Commissioner Keyes noted that the Safety Committee needed to be added under her 
name.  Also, Commissioners Spruill and Walker expressed interest in being on the newly 
developed Economic Development Advisory Council. 
ALBEMARLE RC&D COUNCIL: 
(See email below with request) 
 
Subject: Albemarle Resource Conservation and Development (ARCD) Council Appointment 



 

 
The Albemarle Resource Conservation and Development (ARCD) Council restructured its by-
laws in 2023 to reduce its membership to one representative from each of our 10 regional 
counties (appointed by their respective Boards of Commissioners), effective December 31, 
2024.  The Council hopes that this change will allow for a more nimble board composed of 
active members committed to the mission of ARCD and willing to participate in accomplishing 
great things in our region! 
  
We sent a request back in April for an appointment to the ARCD Board from your County. As of 
this writing we do not have any record of an appointee from your county. We ask that you please 
email us your appointment as soon as possible to continue your counties representation on our 
board. You are welcome to appoint a current member of the board as we have great board 
members from each county. We feel that this restructured Board will allow for a more efficient 
Board.   
  
If you have questions about this, please feel free to reach out to me.  
  
Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
 
Fenton Eure III 
ARCD Chairman of the Board 
Fteure65@gmail.com 
252-333-7943 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the appointment of 
Commissioner Keyes to the RC&D Council.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL  
 
At their meeting on December 19, 2024, the Washington County Planning Board 
appointed Ms. Cynthia Downing to the Economic Development Committee.  Ms. 
Downing’s contact information follows: 
                Cynthia Downing 
                2332 Folly Road 
                Plymouth NC 27962 
                336-462-7903 
                Downingc222@gmail.com 
 
Ms. Downing is experienced in working with Economic Development through the 
College system with a firm concentration in Workforce Development. 
 
This is for information. 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  Please see below. 

 

mailto:Fteure65@gmail.com
mailto:Downingc222@gmail.com


 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 

Commissioner Spruill asked about the typewritten entry on BT# 2025-045.  Ms. Dixon 
stated she did have to use a typewriter to add the entry because the total did not carry over.  He 
also had a question about overtime in Detention.  Ms. Dixon said they are short-staffed.  They 
currently have 4 positions open.  

  
Commissioner Johnson asked how often inspections happen in Detention.  Mr. Potter said 

quite often. Ms. Bennett noted the last one was on October 23, 2024. 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the budget transfers/ 
amendments as presented.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
OTHER ITEMS BY COMMISSIONERS OR STAFF: 

 
 EMTOC Design/Timeline Update –Mr. Jason Squires, ACM stated that they 

have a mtg on 1/9 to go over the final design of the building with the Dept. 
Heads who will be housed in that building along with various other Dept. 
Heads who may have an interest in the facility.  He has a few fluid dates for 
other meetings that have not been decided on yet. He hopes to have more 
information for the Budget Workshop. 
 

 Mr. Potter said he will be having a meeting soon with the Sheriff’s Office to 
discuss pay rates in an effort to help with recruitment. 
 

 Mr. Potter discussed the FY26 Budget Workshop.  The consensus was to 
have the meeting next Wednesday, January 15, 2025.  The meeting will start at 
9:00 AM and carry over to January 16, 2025.  

 
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege), and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner 
Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

  
 Commissioner Keyes made a motion to recess the meeting to January 15, 2025 @ 9:00 AM. 
Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

___________________________    ________________________ 
             Julie J. Bennett, NCMCC, MMC         Carol V. Phelps 
                      Clerk to the Board                        Chair 
 
 
 



 

                        
January 15, 2025 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a Recessed Meeting on 
Wednesday, January 15, 2025, at 9:00 AM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. 
Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present were 
County Manager/ County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason 
Squires, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 
 Chair Phelps called the meeting to order.  
 
First order of business was to figure out lunch! 
 
(The documents being referenced will be attached to the end of these minutes.) 
 
Mr. Potter went over the list of department heads who will come to speak to the Commissioners. 
 
Mr. Potter went over the Agenda he provided.  
 
Ms. Dixon went over the Monthly Financial Summary. 
 
Mr. Potter discussed the Washington County Fund Balance. 
 
Mr. Potter discussed taxes in Washington County over the years. 
 
Mr. Potter asked the Board if they were still interested in keeping the Tax discount. The Board’s concern 
is getting the Tax bills out in a timely manner. Ways are being looked at to make sure they are sent out so 
citizens can take advantage of the discounts.  We might be able to put out a notice on Hyper-Reach.  The 
consensus of the Board was to keep the Tax discount. 
 
Mr. Jason Squires talked to the Board about the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  Commissioner Spruill 
mentioned that he feels the Courthouse needs to be updated or building a new one. 
 
Ms. Laurie Zoll attended the meeting to go over the Grants sheet in the Agenda Workshop documents. 
 
Mr. Potter briefly talked about the County’s water rates. 
 
Mr. Potter talked with the Board about Debt Set-Off. 
 
Mr. Potter touched on the following: 
Schools 
MTW funding—hopefully no major funding issues this year 
VFDs—hopes not to have the hold harmless issue this year 
Do we continue the extra 1 cent?  Mr. Potter said it should be in a separate fund b/c it accumulates.  
Anything left over in the general fund is not held over to the next year.  
Forestry—anticipate no new issues 
Library—director is changing…new director from Tyrrell County 
 



 

Special Commissioner Sponsored Events – budget for events and a gift= $10K.  Commissioner Keyes 
thinks that part-time employees should be included in attending events and receiving gifts. 
Ms. Dixon said that the YORE system and employee events have improved employee morale from what 
she hears. The consensus of the Board is to increase this budget by $2K to $12K and include part-time 
employees who are scheduled workers (but not seasonal employees).  
  
Funding for outside requests: $8K total for 3 festivals, Albemarle Food Bank and this year included 
AGENC and Center for Domestic Violence and increased the budget. (The Clerk is to send out emails 
with deadline for inclusion in this year’s budget to various agencies.)  This fund increased to $12K this 
year.  The consensus of the Board is to stay at $12K. 
 
Commissioner Johnson said we would be getting a request from Mr. Vann Rogerson with NC East 
Alliance for a membership of $1,150.  (This would be in Dues & Subscriptions.) 
 
Debt service in the water dept is steadily decreasing.  
 
Transfers—one collective penny to the airport, 4 collected pennies to EMS, amount on hospital retirement 
may be decreased, Recreation pushing out $10K for future PARTF grant fund, Reval-$40,000 
 
County personnel— 
Mr. Potter said he has compared Washington County to other surrounding counties and does not feel that 
we need to do a comprehensive review this year. We do have some soft spots to address—such as law 
enforcement. 
Some executive level salaries need to be reviewed such as Utilities Director, IT Director, EMS Director 
and Assistant Director, Sheriff and Chief Deputy, Finance Officer, and ACM. 
Looking at a COLA increase again this year. 
Adding Economic Development position.  It may be under CMO or it may be an individual department.  It 
may even be under Planning. 
Airport—have not been able to hire a part-time airport employee. Maybe split a position between Facilities 
and Airport. Does not feel there is enough to do for a full-time airport employee 
 
Mowing contact is up for renewal and Mr. Sasser, Utilities and Mr. Young, Facilities are comfortable with 
negotiating a renewal. 
 
Mr. Squires stated that in years past the Landfill was under Utilities but is currently a standalone 
department. Mr. Sasser would like it to be moved under the Landfill to get a greater depth of 
understanding of what is needed and could also train some of his guys to fill in if needed.  The new guy in 
the position of Landfill Operator, David Bowers, who moved from Facilities, has been a great asset to the 
Landfill. 
Consensus of the Board is to move it under Utilities. 
 
Proposal to move Senior Center under Recreation from Ms. Collier. 
Mr. Potter said that the Library, Cooperative Extension, Senior Center & Recreation are the newly formed 
Community Enrichment Group. 
 
Mr. Potter talked about the LFNC intern position.  He is not sure we are getting another one, but the 
current LFNC, Mr. Waterman, thinks we might.  However, Mr. Potter feels that if we hire Mr. Kelly 
Chesson, we will not need to get an LFNC and could put the funding towards to Economic Development 
position. 
 



 

Clerk of Court—is asking for county funding of temporary deputy clerk position  
 
Other Cost Saving Options or Efficiency Ideas-- 
Move up reval to 6 years instead of 8 years 
Charge for some services in EMS 
Buyout of Hospital Pension holders.  Add to Strategic Plan. 
Regional Jail? Washington County, Bertie & Chowan 
Proposal to increase PO limit? To $2,500 from $1,000.  Consensus of the Board to increase the PO limit to 
$2,500. 
 
The Board/County Manager asked Ms. Bennett to look at having an extra screen in the Board Room, look 
at mobile screens, and a new bracket for existing Mondopad. 
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD DISCUSSIONS: 
 
Detention, Ms. Clinta Blount, Ms. Tiffany Crumity & Chief Deputy Mr. Arlo Norman—Ms. Blount stated 
that the probes for doing rounds in the jail have been discontinued and they will have to buy a new system. 
They do not know if they can locate any extras for when one of them fails.  Mr. Potter said to take one of 
the probes to Ms. Laurie Zoll, Grants & Procurement, to see if she can find one on the web to have extras.  
Price quote for new system:  ~$6,000 
 
The sheet Metal on the walls are corroding in the cells.  Mr. Potter said the Facilities Advisory Committee 
needs to tour the jail. 
 
Have doors that will not open 
 
Floors and showers not working on the female side. Ms. Blount said Facilities has looked at it and said 
they ordered parts.  Facilities Advisory Committee will take these items over to find solutions. 
 
Mr. Potter said he knows Detention is short-staffed and pay is an issue. Ms. Crumity said once they get a 
new employee trained, they soon leave to work somewhere else that pays better.  
Mr. Potter asked if the employees felt safe in Detention. 
 
Rebecca Liverman, Cooperative Extension Director 
Handed out flyer of work they did this year 
Handed out flyer for the Mobile Market—achieved from a grant. Starts coming every Friday to the First 
Christian Church.  Anyone can go through it. Promotes healthy food and eating. A lot of residents have 
been taking advantage of this.  
Budget: 50/50 between state and county government 
Ms. Liverman asked what the current mileage rate is. Mr. Potter said we may be looking at raising the 
mileage rate.  It is currently $.50 
Ms. Liverman said she is working with a partnership with Recreation & the Senior Center to use their bus 
since her new person has her CDL. 
Has a few grants in the works. 
Would like to replace carpet from 1995—will be putting it in her CIP. 
May 7 is the Livestock Show….may be a small one again this year 
Her staff is appreciative of the County’s COLA increase. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to recess the meeting to January 16, 2025 @ 9:00 AM. 
Commissioner Keyes seconded; motion carried unanimously. 



 

 
 

___________________________    ________________________ 
             Julie J. Bennett, NCMCC, MMC         Carol V. Phelps 
                      Clerk to the Board                        Chair 
 
 
 



 

                        
January 16, 2025 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a recessed meeting on 
Thursday, January 16, 2025, at 9:00 AM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John 
C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present were County Manager/ 
County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason Squires, Clerk to the 
Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 
 Chair Phelps called the meeting to order.  
 
 Various Department Heads came to speak to the Commissioners. 
 
Randy Fulford—Recreation Director 
If Recreation gets the gym at the old Plymouth High School (PHS), the NC High School 
Athletic Association (NCHSAA) wants Washington County to start hosting tournaments.  
 
He also feels that having Recreation and the Senior Center merged together will help in 
being able to write grants to enhance both departments. 
 
Commissioner Spruill asked what is being done for outreach to the public.  Mr. Fulford 
said Ms. Kneiper (CMO Assistant) puts things on the County Facebook site and in the 
Beacon, along with flyers that can be picked up from the gym.  
 
Commissioner Spruill asked if he reaches out to the school system?  Mr. Fulford said yes, 
and also his wife works for the school system and she spreads the word.  
 
Commissioner Spruill said he appreciates Mr. Fulford looking for opportunities to bring 
tournaments to the County which in turn brings people that buy gas and food, which helps 
the County. 
 
Mr. Potter asked if Mr. Fulford would consider using the Roper Gym.  Mr. Fulford said it 
is more centrally located, but it is not in good condition. He does not feel there is sufficient 
space in Roper. PHS would be a better choice. 
 
Mr. Potter said he will be meeting with the school system and hashing out such details.   
Mr. Fulford said he needs to know by February 14, 2025 if the gym & fields will be 
available so he can let the NCHSAA know if we can host tournaments. 
 
Commissioner Walker said he feels that Roper Gym is in the center of the County and may 
be more accessible. 
   
Mr. Potter asked about the Pea Ridge Park. Mr. Fulford said he needs to see about building 
dugouts there to be able to have softball there. 
 
Mr. Potter said he thinks the standalone gym in Roper would be good for pickleball. 
 
 
Dora Bell—Elections Director 



 

There are some protests still going on from the November 2024 elections. All the counts 
came back the same. 
 
She went on to say that their building was assessed by the State.  They did not like the 
lighting. Maintenance is working on the lights. Regarding security/safety, they did not like 
that the Director would not have a way out if something was going on at the front of the 
building. 
Other items they noted: 
Furniture–she inherited the furniture that is there, needs some more functional pieces 
Lighting inside the building is too dark. 
 
Ms. Bell said she feels the need for an increase in pay for her and her part-time employees. 
Pay is different in the counties due to the amount of voters there are.  Discussion ensued 
regarding a full-time employee—possibly a “floater”. 
 
There will be a Municipal and County primary in FY26. 
 
She also noted that she doesn’t have a panic button if she were to encounter a situation. 
 
She said she has no issues with BCCC administration or staff. 
 
She would like to have a window in here office. 
 
Harley Spruill—911 Director (and Chief Deputy Arlo Norman) 
Mr. Potter gave Ms. Spruill a brief overview of how the budget process works. 
 
Ms. Spruill said she is finishing up the 911 radio grant—getting invoices straight to turn 
into Finance. 
 
911 has gone to 12 hr. shifts. This will cut back on overtime. 
 
She said she is hoping our 911 will qualify for a 4th position (an active console)—which 
they could house after they move to the EMTOC building.  Ms. Spruill said she is doing 
admin work and taking calls. 
 
Chief Deputy Norman gave Ms. Spruill props for stepping up when the County needed her 
after the previous 911 Director left.  She has a lot of desire to do this job and do it well.  
 
Mr. Squires said he hears calls in his office over the radio from the Planning Office and 
can tell that things with 911 have drastically improved since Ms. Spruill stepped into the 
job. 
 
Lance Swindell– EM Coordinator 
Mr. Swindell anticipates acquiring a storage facility.  He has been keeping equipment in 
other areas of different County departments. 
 
Other items in his upcoming budget include: 
Trailer & forklift--$80 - $100K 
The recuse boat should be ready in about 3 weeks (command upfit, trailer, motor) 
EMTG –training grant is a 50/50 match, $20,695 



 

Applied for grant for Hyper-Reach cost of $14,600 
Increase in maintenance funds, added equipment for deployment (radio) 
Fuel expenses are increasing due to using more fuel (when the boat gets in the water) 
Wants to be able to do tabletop exercises (as recommended by Commissioner Johnson) 
New radio tower location and design 
 
Sheriff Johnny Barnes/Chief Deputy Arlo Norman—Sheriff’s Office 
Sheriff Barnes distributed paperwork entitled “Things to Know About Becoming or Being 
a Deputy Sheriff” including salaries for our Sheriff’s Office employees, starting salaries 
and starting salaries from surrounding counties. Discussion ensued. Our Deputies are 
currently backing up the Plymouth Police Department when needed.  They are not 
compensated from the Town of Plymouth.  They still get their pay, etc. from the County. 
The County is accruing overtime/comp time while doing this. 
Mr. Potter said the salary issue needs to get resolved in the next couple of months…not 
wait until FY26. Discussion ensued. Mr. Potter said he may be able to bring issue before 
the board in March. 
 
Two cars (SUVs) are needed in this year’s budget for the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
Renee’ Collier—Senior Center Director 
See presentation below. 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 
She note that the County needs a minimum of 4000 sq ft for the Senior Center for 
certification in April 2028. 
Ms. Collier also feels the merger and move with Recreation would be advantageous to the 
County and likes the idea of the newly merged departments to be in Roper. 
 
Clerk of Court—Keith Phelps 
See email from Mr. Phelps below. 
 
     I am writing you concerning a dire staffing situation in this office.  I have been 
informed that the temporary Deputy Clerk position in this office will not be funded after 



 

January 31, 2025, so I will be losing an essential position.  The temporary Deputy Clerk 
serves as the primary cashier and is who currently receipts payment of child support purge 
payments, fines, and court costs, provides front counter coverage in the civil division, 
processes filings in Small Claims Court and provides general coverage elsewhere in the 
office.  This staff member has mastered the Enterprise Justice software, which allows 
citizens to be served in a timely manner in filing Small Claims cases and paying money as 
ordered by the Court. The Washington County Clerk of Superior Court’s Office is a small 
office, with five non-temporary positions and one temporary position as well as me.  This 
office is physically divided, in that the office is separated by a public accessible hallway in 
the Washington County Courthouse, with two (non-temporary positions) staff members in 
the criminal division and four (three non-temporary positions and one temporary position) 
staff members in the civil division, which also serves as the cashier station.  My private 
office, which is in the criminal division, is where estate and special proceedings matters 
are filed, processed and most hearings for these matters are held.  The staff members in 
this office wear multiple hats due to the workload of this office and the need to segregate 
duties in the financial work of this office.  The financial team of this office consists of one 
bookkeeper, two head cashiers, two cashiers (one of whom is the temporary Deputy Clerk) 
and one back-up cashier, who is also a criminal staff member.  As you can see the 
financial team consists of my entire staff.       
  
     Enterprise Justice in the courtroom setting requires the use of two courtroom clerks to 
process judgments/orders, enter in financial data for payments and handle other clerical 
business of the Court.  Currently, I have two criminal staff members (one of whom serves 
as the backup cashier) to provide coverage at criminal/traffic sessions of District Court and 
two civil staff members (one of whom serves as the secondary cashier) to provide 
coverage at civil/child support sessions of District Court.  If a Deputy Clerk position is 
lost, then I will be unable to send two clerks to provide courtroom coverage for traffic, 
criminal, civil and child support sessions of District Court as one of the two clerks who is 
also a cashier must be in the office to receipt payments of child support purge payments, 
fines and court costs, provide front counter coverage in the civil division and process 
filings in Small Claims Court, which will result in a massive backlog in Washington 
County District Court.  Further, a massive backlog may result in the exodus of longtime 
staff members, which will only add to the backlog.  Please know that I am not making 
threats, but stating what I fear will be a certainty if this office loses a Deputy Clerk 
position.  Additionally, to operate this office with only one cashier is a heading for 
disaster.  If sole cashier is out unexpectedly due to illness or injury, then there will be no 
one available to receipt payments or I will have to serve as the cashier.  A few years ago, I 
was having to serve as the cashier while attempting to conduct a hearing in an estate 
matter and had to take a recess to receipt a child support purge payment.  As stated 
previously, this office is physically divided by a public accessible hallway, so I had to take 
a recess, walk across the hallway to the cashier station, receipt the child support purge 
payment, process the child support purge transmittal form, go back into the hallway, get 
stopped in the hallway by a citizen with a question, get back into my private office and 
regain my thoughts to resume the hearing, while the parties to the hearing had been sitting 
for over thirty minutes.  Having to halt the proceeding before me, I felt was an injustice to 
those that were appearing before me and a violation of my obligation as a judicial official 
to provide justice without unnecessary delay.      
  
    I am the sole person in the Estates, Special Proceedings and Civil Superior Court 
Divisions as I simply do not have enough staff members to cover these areas.  On 



 

Tuesdays, when there is a criminal/traffic session of District Court, I am in the office 
alone, which requires me to answer the telephone and handle walk-in traffic, all while 
attempting to handle estates and special proceeding matters in addition to my 
administrative duties as the Clerk of Superior Court.  A few months ago, one of the two 
criminal staff members was out with COVID AND the flu, which required me to serve as 
one of the two courtroom clerks at a criminal/traffic session of District Court.  Since there 
was no one to provide coverage for criminal, estates and special proceeding matters, I was 
forced to completely shut down these divisions as I did not have enough staff members to 
staff these areas and individuals that needed to transact criminal, estates and special 
proceedings business were turned away.  Again, this office is a small office, where the 
staff members wear multiple hats and one staff member being out of the office can create a 
strain on the work of this office.  Further, staff members should be able to be out due to 
illness or vacation without worrying about the strain they are creating by being out of the 
office.  I am very concerned that if I lose a Deputy Clerk position, this office is heading for 
collapse.     
  
    I have contacted my legislative delegation via email for assistance as well as to request 
a meeting with them when I visited the General Assembly with other elected Clerks of 
Superior Court in May and received no response.  My plan is to begin making telephone 
calls to my legislative delegation when the General Assembly convenes on January 8, 
2025.   On December 11, myself, and Clerk Goodwin from Chowan County, who has a 
temporary Deputy Clerk position that is essential to the function of his office, traveled to 
the NC Judicial Center to meet with NC AOC Director Boyce and Deputy Director Kyzer 
about the dire staffing situation in our respective offices.  Clerk Goodwin and I were 
appreciative for Director Boyce and Deputy Director Kyzer taking the time out of their 
busy schedules to meet with us.  We also expressed our appreciation for the temporary 
Deputy Clerk positions in our offices.  Director Boyce informed Clerk Goodwin and 
myself that the financial resources to fund temporary positions were depleted, offered 
suggestions, such as cross-training of staff, which is used by this office as well as the use 
of “Magi-clerks”, which is not an option as the three Magistrates in Washington County 
have been renominated and reappointed for a four-year term.  As the Clerk of Superior 
Court, who is elected by the citizens of Washington County, I feel that I have a duty to 
provide an efficient District and Superior Court to the citizens of Washington County and 
to do otherwise would be a disservice to them as well as a violation of the oath of office of 
the Clerk of Superior Court. 
 
     Since this office serves the citizens of Washington County, would Washington County 
fund the temporary Deputy Clerk position in this office?  I was wondering if the salary 
allotted for a vacant county position could be used to fund the temporary Deputy Clerk 
position until the end of the fiscal year.  The position would not require any benefits only 
an hourly wage.  I am glad to meet with you to discuss this matter.    
 
Finance would have to look into this if it is the pleasure of the Board to pay for this 
temporary position. CSP said he would rather pay the AOC and let them continue to pay 
her. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill asked Mr. Phelps what his feelings were regarding the 
Courthouse.  Mr. Phelps said he feels that if the nonjudicial offices were moved out of the 
Courthouse (Jail and Sheriff’s office) it would free up a lot of office space and parking 
spaces. 



 

 
 Mr. Potter said he will look into this and bring this back to the Board. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill asked what the County is going to do about the Sheriff’s 
Office salaries.  Mr. Potter said he is going to go back and take another look at what 
surrounding counties are doing for starting pay and raising their salaries.  
 
Tax Office—Sherri Wilkins 
Ms. Wilkins stated her office is down two positions. She would like to change to change  
one of the open positions from Assistant Tax Administrator to Tax Analyst.  There are so 
many reports to send to various agencies and reconciliation that the analyst position would 
be responsible for. She is also collecting data for salary requests. She will be actively 
recruiting for her positions in June in hopes to hire in July.  
 
 Mr. Potter explained to Ms. Wilkins that we need to start FY26 with Keystone in 
place. 
 
 Mr. Potter asked her to explain the revaluation process.  Ms. Wilkins said they will 
start in 2027 for reval in 2029. He asked her what about moving reval to every 6 years 
rather than 8 years.  Ms. Wilkins said it takes 18 months to complete. She would have to 
have the change approved by Dept. of Revenue. Mr. Potter asked Ms. Wilkins to just 
check on what it would take to move up the reval. 
 
Jennifer O’Neal—EMS 
Ms. O’Neal talked through the following presentation. 
 

 



 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
DSS--Clifton Hardison/Lynn Swett  
Mr. Hardison said no big surprises were coming up. Children Services is where the biggest 
concern is. DSS still has three (3) vacancies in this area at this time. They have 30 kids in 
care and one (1) social worker with limited experience. 
They will be asking for various increases and gave explanations why. 
In the CIP, they will be asking for $22K to replace the Jeep Compass. 
They will be having some painting done in the offices and will be asking for Maintenance 
to do this work. 



 

 
Utilities--Lee Sasser 
He has a few issues with retention of employees 
He has updated quite a few things on both sides of the plant (distribution and water) 
He will be asking for new distribution truck to replace a 2013 with 145K miles on it and 
would be letting the Landfill have this one 
Other items: 
Needs a new pressure washer for cleaning equipment 
Needs a new mud pump 
Toolboxes in the trucks—been using ones from the old trucks (they do not lock) 
Locks for meters—they are expensive--$10/ea 
8 ½ x 12 enclosed trailer—rapid response trailer to carry tools/equipment when they have 
to go to a jobsite--~$5,600 
They have finished up with the new SCADA system. 
Mr. Potter asked about the timeline for Pea Ridge Expansion completion.  Mr. Sasser 
replied by the end of 2025. 
Mr. Sasser said his staff are working on making sure all meters are working. 
Well #1 was rehabbed this year (it is about 25 years old). 
Mr. Potter asked about the Asset Inventory.  Mr. Sasser said it is 95% complete. 
Mr. Potter asked did the AIA include a water rate study.  Mr. Sasser said yes . 
Mr. Potter said that all water employees need body cams to help show what is going on 
with customers. 
The expansion project is going out for bid in early spring. 
He has 5 employees. 
He will be getting some new software to monitor the fire hydrants and will be able to relay 
information to fire departments, 
He is also working with the Landfill----the trash loader is worn out and will cost about 
$25,000 - $100,000 to fix.  A used compactor would be more useful to have, which would 
cost $500,000. A new one runs $800,000. The County will soon need dirt to fill in for the 
C&D at the landfill.  
He would like to have an arm mower & a batwing mower. 
He needs to revisit the overgrowth at the landfill.  The quotes he received are apples to 
oranges. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Keyes 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
_____________________________________   _______________________ 
          Julie J. Bennett, NCMCC, MMC        Carol V. Phelps 
                  Clerk to the Board                    Chair 
 
 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda February 3, 2025
	2-3-2025 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	FY26 Budget Officer Guidelines For BOCC Workshop 20250115 for 20250203 BOCC mtg approval
	2-3-2025 Item 2 (public forum)
	2-3-2025 Item 3 Request for Temp COC position
	BOCC MEMO re FY25 Temp COC Clerk Position and AOC Contract for 20250203 mtg
	FY25 Washington County Temporary Deputy Clerk - AOC Contract and Budget from COC.pdf
	FY25 Washington County Temporary Deputy Clerk
	FY25 Washington County Temporary Deputy Clerk


	2-3-2025 Item 4 Dept. Info Update-Soil & Water
	2-3-2025 Item 5 S.T.R.A.P. Bids
	S.T.R.A.P bids Board Memo Pack 2-2-25
	2-3-2025 Item 6 Tax Collector's Report
	2-3-2025 Item 7 ED & Strategic Plan Progress Update
	Washington County Ongoing Strategic Plan Econ Dev Sheet v20250130 for 20250203
	Washington County Ongoing Strategic Plan Educ Sheet v20250130 for 20250203
	2-3-2025 Item  8 PK 12 Funding Agreement & Lease
	WCS Signed Funding Agreement Amendment 1 w WCS Signed Lease for 20250203 BOCC mtg
	2-3-2025 Item 9 Boards & Committees
	2-3-2025 Item 10 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Amendments and Transfers
	Financial Report 1-28-2025
	2-3-2025 Item 11 Other Items
	Reports for 2-3-2025 BoCC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	FY24-25 Statisitc Report  (5)
	2-3-2025 Item 12 Closed Session
	1-6-2025 Minutes
	1-15-2025 Recessed Mtg Minutes Budget Workshop
	1-16-2025 Special Called Mtg Minutes Budget Workshop



